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We know how. , |

“I have confidence in our experience, owr stralegic
focus and our people. These tiree elements are the

32

S,

reason / OF OUT SUCE

Dear Stakeholders:

Great companies never stand still. They refine their
strategic focus. They streamline. At the same time,
they don’close sight of the things that make them
successlul — thetr essential value equation. Daou is

onc of those companics.

1n 2003, we took a hard look ar our value equation.
What makes us tick? What sets us apart from other
healtheare IT consuling firms? What Keeps our
customers coming back? Answers in hand, we took steps
to strengthen the equation, focusing on our essential
assets, eliminating redundancy, finding new
and elficient wavs to deliver the value our

customers have come to C.\IP(‘CI [rom us.

The imegrity of our solutions is solidly
grounded in our core competencies
mn infrastructure, integration, and
application services. Over the past year,
weve invested considerable time wiloring
strategic solutions to help organizations
maximize the value of their technology
Y. investments — whether those invesunenis
were made five vears ago, five months ago,
or five davs ago. IUs an uncommon approach.
Butin a marketplace that has heard its share
of hollow promises, we're pleased to be
uncommon, with a reputation for knowing

how that other companies can't ouch,




Daou’s reputation as the know-how company
is hard-earned, anchored by 17 years of
experience in healthcare IT. That’s the first
element of our value equation. The second is
our sharp strategic focus on the IT challenges
healthcare organizations face; the third, our
team of exceptional people who deliver
solutions to those challenges. It’s a strong
equation that added up to a successful year

for Daou in 2003.

Focusing on Fundamentals

Daou was profitable in every quarter of 2003 —
testimony not only to our loyal customer

base, but also to our strong management team
and our dedicated employees in a difficult
market environment. We began the year
determined to return to financial soundness,
but we didn’t stop there. Our focus on the
fundamentals also led us to institute a series
of operational improvements, including
restructuring internal management to promote
a mindset of one company, one team and one
mission. We also reviewed the sheer number
of our service lines, and recognized that by
separating strategic from non-strategic offerings
we could go forward with a more defined set
of value-added services, making it simpler for
our customers to connect Daou solutions with
their specific needs. This initiative marked the
first phase of Daou’s evolution from a services
company to a strategic solutions provider. As
we worked through 2003’s packed agenda, we
affirmed, in tangible ways, our basic beliefs in
the value of our employees and the customers
we serve. And while we were clearly successful
in generating operational improvement and
excellence, our success didn’t come without

difficult decisions along the way.

We discontinued our outsourced support center

management services to two regional health

systems based in Indianapolis. We took the loss
of 46 employees hard, but we found homes for
the vast majority of people with our former
clients. The revenue impact of this decision was
not felt in 2003, but will become one of our
significant challenges in the coming year as we
work to maintain and improve our financial
performance. Still, by “sticking to our knitting”
and eliminating non-strategic services, we
sharpened our operational focus and honed

our competitive edge.

Puttimg Eiperiance 1o Work

We pride ourselves on being more than
technology experts. We're a team of professionals
equipped to consider healthcare organizational
needs holistically: from the IT infrastructure

to the myriad applications to the integration

of the systems and technologies that make an
enterprise hum. In 2003, we applied that
expertise to deliver winning solutions for
customers ranging from Sutter Health, one of
the nation’s ie\zlding not-for-profit healthcare
organizations, to Keystone Mercy Health Plan,
a major payer serving more than 260,000
medical assistance recipients in southeastern
Pennsylvania, to the U.S. Departments of

Defense and Veterans Affairs.

In these and every other customer engagement,
our expertise grows stronger. We apply that
accumulated expertise to the next customer
engagement, and the next. But that’s not the
only way our customers benefit from our industry
knowledge. We listen to the marketplace, too.
We’ve made a significant investment in
facilitating “next generation” thinking through
our nationwide CIO Forum program. We
celebrated our second year of Forums in 2003,
and continue to marvel at the deep-seated need
ClOs have for peer interaction and candid

professional exchange. We're pleased that our
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Forums meet this need, as well as create a secure
environment where thinking can be challenged
and solutions debated. The Forums have been
so successful that ClOs have asked us to provide
similar programs for their IT directors. (Check
out www.daou.com to see how we are responding

to this request.)

In addition to our Forums, we also gained
valuable insight from the distinguished
members of our Provider and Payer Advisory
Boards who let us know what “pain points” are
keeping them up at night and what service
solutions might help them sleep better. For a

company of uncommonly good listeners, these

the enormous investment of total system
replacement. Marketed under the name
RAPILD.™IT solutions, these proven, affordable
options apply Daou’s know-how in infrastructure,
integration, application services, project
management and best practices in the
implementation of new technologies that are

in great demand. Indeed, 2003 was the year we
rolled out the enabling power of our advanced
technologies consulting expertise. Especially in
the areas of mobile health and web services, we
gained considerable momentum. We achieved
satisfying customer wins in both areas. We
strengthened our position as experts with the

media and analysts in these disciplines. We

groups have become invaluable
assets, keeping us at the
forefront of thought leadership
and providing us with a

firsthand view of key issues

in need of solutions.

Solid experience.
Sharp focus.
Smanrt people.

Daow’s Value Equation.

helped the market understand
the risks of a short-sighted
approach to wireless, or trying
to “webify” an application

for the “sizzle factor” alone.

Advocating a holistic,

Emhancing Our GCompany Diresclion

In 2003, the management team’s focus on
improving our operations and achieving
profitability was unflinching. But we also tackled
even tougher issues: evaluating our positioning
in the marketplace and how to reconfigure it,
striving to achieve'a simplified business model
built on what we do best, and reviewing our
current financial platform. Hard work, yes, but
the alternative is unacceptable for a company

committed to leaving the status quo behind.

A new year brought a new emphasis at Daou on
the development of tightly-focused IT consulting
services. Why? Because we saw a market desperately
needing our IT expertise as always, butin a
different form — smaller, more affordable “bites,”
if you will. Designed in 2003 for the HIT needs
of 2004, these bundled solutions let customers

take fast advantage of new technologies without

enterprise-wide perspective, we’ve taken
an uncommon point of view, one — we are

delighted to discover — the marketplace

resoundingly values.

We responded to the growing convergence of IT
needs among providers, payers and government
entities. We have long been experts in the
specific IT requirements of each market
segment, and over the course of 2003 we worked
to develop “crossover” solutions that will benefit
all of them - solutions for implementing new
technologies that will drive operational

efficiency and competitive advantage.

In addition, we recognized the transcendent
value of business process and workflow expertise
to every market segment, especially as core IT
systems are replaced or enhanced. In 2003, we
made sure that our valued expertise in business

process alignment is embedded in every




R.APLD. solution. Without it, customers simply
don’t realize the full potential of the new

technology they have invested in.

[an2ging for (e Road Ahead

Even with our successful efforts in 2003, there
continues to be significant work ahead of us to
position Daou strategically in the marketplace
in 2004. Believe me, it's not simple math; it's a
complicated equation. And it involves decisions
that must guide our company securely over market
obstacles and keep us building the momentum
we started in early 2002. We must continue to
simplify our business model, expand our tactical
market focus and continue to improve our sales
productivity. In addition, we need to accelerate
our work on the company’s strategic direction,
and establish our objective of improving Daou’s

financial platform in 2004. But that’s not all.

As we are closely wracking a quarter-by-quarter
downward trend in revenue that started in the
second half of 2003, we must ask ourselves what
more we can do to mitigate it - or better yet, to
turn it around. Clearly, we are concerned about
our ability to slow a downward trend in payer-
related service line revenues. Coupled with
severe pressure on payers to lower administrative
costs, we see fewer new system installations in
the mid-tier payer market we serve. In response,
we began transitioning our payer practice from
an implementation focus to one that offers
business process alignment and additional
postimplementation services. And yet, while

we offer significant value to this segment of the
healthcare market, the economic forces affecting
its ability to support new IT investments are

unfortunately beyond our control.

Seluting Our Peopie

In last year’s Annual Report, we discussed our

efforts to brand and reposition the company.

We defined the brand as “a promise” a company
makes to the marketplace. We like to think

of our promise in terms of know-how, and its
fulfillment as customer value. I'm comfortable
knowing that our brand rests firmly on the
capable shoulders of our people. They are,
indeed, the best and the brightest in ‘the
business. Not coincidentally, our customers

are the first to agree.

When 1 joined the company in 2001, I
instituted Daou’s first employee recognition
program. The President’s Award recognizes
employees who exemplify Daou’s ethics and
integrity as the know-how company, and who

deliver exceptional value to customers.

Three recent President’s Award recipients
are profiled in this Annual Report - Greg
Costigan, Chris Kent and Theresa St. Peter —
three shining stars who represent the depth

of talent behind Daou.

Ultimately, consultants like these and their
many outstanding colleagues are the most
important component of Daou’s value
equation. We’ll let them tell you more about
it in the section that follows our “Year in
Review.” Learn about their experience with
customers. Their intense focus. Their
philosophy that “getting credit is secondary
to getting the job done.” With dedication like
that, how can we not be optimistic about our

company’s future? I certainly am.

Sincerely,

e

Daniel J. Malcolm
President and Chief Executive Officer

Daou Systems, Inc.
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1The year

I review.

A number of varied
factors played a part in
shaping the difficult
landscape that was U.S.
healthcare in 2003:

o the multiple
impacts of HIPAA;

© the post-September 2001
reverberations that in turn
depressed U.S. investment in

technology and other areas;

© the cries for healthcare
reform and the
industry-wide move toward

consumer-driven healthcare;

© the nursing crisis, so severe
that the predicted shortage
by 2010 1s 200,000

nurses nationwide;

o thetension between
technology-proficient physicians,
who wani the latest wireless,
paperless, electronic gadget on
the market, and those who want
to adhere to the traditional

paper-based system.

The company put its know-how lo work, keeping Daow on

course in a challenging year for the healthcare indusiry.

The Market Challenge

In 2003, IT spending by healthcare institutions as a
percentage of total operating budget was at its lowest point

since 1998, according o a 2003 survey by Modern Healtheare.

Each segment of the healthcare indusury had its share

of struggles:

Providers. Of the more than 200 ClOs who have attended
Daou’s CIO Forums — representing the full range of provider
organizations from 100-bed communiry hospitals ro complex
regional IDNs that serve thousands of patients — the vast
majority have said they are either breaking even or losing
money in the face of declining reimbursement levels and
rising costs. Despite this less than sanguine financial picture,
a majority ol hospitals were engaged in major capital
improvements, many of which had a strong I'T component.
Clearly, organizations realize that they must invest in their
infrastructure, revenue enhancement initatives, and emerging
technology projects o position themselves for future growth.
Payers. Micway through 2003, Garmer published a report
stating the growth rate for IT budgess in the paver market
segment “has slowed during the past few years and CEOs
are pressuring ClOs to hold back any nonessential
technology spending.™ This rend negatively impacted
Daou’s paverrelated service line revenues.

Government healtheare. Revenues on the government side
were slower, 100, attributable in large part to the delay

in Congressional approval of the FY 2004 Consolidated
Appropriations Bill (Omnibus) untl late January 2004, and the
redirection of monies 1o the war efforts in Afghanistan and

Iraq away from Department of Delense healthcare investments.




Against this daunting backdrop, Daou is proud

of its financial accomplishments in 2003.

e Return to Profiability

In 2003, Daou achieved its two primary goals
for the year: the company improved operations
and achieved profitability. In fact, Daou finished

profitably in each of the four quarters and the year.

There weére other notable achievements. One of
the elements of Daou’s value equation is customer
focus, and Daou’s executive team worked to focus
the company on what it does best — helping
organizations adopt new technologies whether
they are working to extend the life and value of
current healthcare IT systems or implementing

new clinical systems.

T Nolistic Perspeeiive

As technology evolves, Daou finds that the market
sectors served by the company have more similarides
than differences when it comes to IT challenges
and the need for “realworld” solutions. Government
healthcare wants to implement practices that are
working in the commercial world. Payers are
becoming as “customer-centric” as providers when
they undertake new IT initiatives. At the same time,
each market sector has unique challenges that only
a company like Daou, with 17 years of exceptional
service to each sector of the healthcare industry,

can bring to the table. In 2003, Daou streamlined

its core services in infrastructure, applications and

integration, not only to make them readily available
to all the markets served by Daou, but also to
facilitate the nimble blending of those services to
suit a customer’s needs. To this end, the year began
with a restructuring of Daou’s internal management
to consolidate redundant operations and eliminate
non-strategic services. Later in the year, the company
closed its Indianapolis-based Daou Technology
Center (DTC), which provided Help Desk and

desktop support services on an outsourcing basis

1. Gartner. Healthcare Payer 2002 I'T Budget and Slaffing Study Results. June 18, 2003,

to two regional health systems. The decision
solidified Daou’s position as a healthcare IT
consulting firm, no longer in the business of
outsourcing, but continuing to provide customers
with best practice expertise in Help Desk, break/fix
and desktop support.

These actions have made Daou a less siloed
company; better able to tap all the resources and
expertise the company has to offer and apply
them quickly and seamlessly where they are
needed. The result is a truly holistic approach

to solving a customer’s IT challenges.

The Solutions Stralegy

Another important event in 2003 was a branding
summit the company hosted to fine-tune its market
strategy. During a session that included Daou’s
executive team and company advisers, the RA.PLD.
initiative was born. Interestingly, respected
editors of leading industry publications attended
the summit. They agreed that RA.PLD. was a
program the industry needs and needs now.
Their candor spoke volumes about the credibility
Daou has gained in the marketplace, and verified

management’s well-grounded assumptions that

the RA.P.LD. program is right on target.

The Power of Listening

The industry is paying attention to Daou. Continued
strong attendance at Daou’s second year of C10
Forums underscores that point. An executive
summary of the issues discussed during those
sessions, titled “The Pulse of the Industry” and
prepared by Daou in late 2003, brings another point
to light: Daou pays attention to the marketplace
— understands its concerns, anticipates its needs.
It’s yet another way the company can truly say

it knows how. That quality is the single most
important factor that sets Daou apart from the
competition, and will go a long way toward

keeping the company firmly on course in 2004.
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! know how.

Greg Costigan
Senior Consultant,
Government and

Integration Services

“Getting credil is secondary Lo getting the job done.”
g yiog g

That's how Gieg Costigan sums wfy his exprevience as '
Deenrt consullant with the US. gooevionent. Gieg woiled

an assignment for two years with o softwaie applications

provider undey coityvact with CITPO, the Cliviral

Information Technology Program Office, an ageiey within

the Deprartwment of Defense (Dol)). CITPO adiministers

the massioe I'F systens ivtating to healtheaie for active

duty military pevsonnel.

It's About Experience

Ask Greg about his role on the DoD project, and be
prepared lor an answer that requires more than a
few sound bites. That’s the complex nature of IT in
government healthcare today. And it’s one of
the reasons Daou’s experience in the area

is so highly valued.
Ly 7

“The project as a whole was called the
CHCS 11 project, which stands for
Composite Healthcare System Part I1,”
says Greg. “It was the building of an
enterprise-wide, client/server-based
application to replace the legacy Composite
Healthcare System I (CHCS 1), the original
solution for the military health system that

was implemented about 15 vears ago.”

Greg’s role? To be sure data Hows smoothly
between CHCS | and 11, which will run in
parallel for a number of years untit CHCS [

functionality is eventually replaced by the CHCS




II architecture. He was the integration specialist,
implementng and sﬁpporting the interface engine
that enables the routing and transformation of

data between CHCS I and CHCS 1I.

Building & Bridoe

Daou brought to the table expertise in
SeeBeyond’s DataGate™ and eGate™, the
interface engines purchased on behalf of
CITPC) to build a bridge between the two
applications. In addition, the DoD needed

~ particular healthcare IT experience working
with the integration of such disparate
information stores as patient demographics,

radiology, pharmacy and laboratory data.

That’s the kind of experience Dapﬁ is known for
—'experience in the M-technology (based on the
MUMPS progfammingrlanguage) typically used
by government healthcare organizations. With
17 years of experience in that technology, Greg
notes with confidence that Daou is peerlessin’

the industry.

One of the biggest projects in Greg’s career, »
the upgradé was completed before the end

of 2002. Through Greg’s work, Daou has played
a key role in helping make the military’s
medical records more easily accessed by those
who need them, when they need them - even

on the battlefield.

People Male It Possikie

Indeed, Greg is proud of Daou’s uncommon
goverﬁmem experience, and the expertise of
the people who make it possible. In government
and integration services alone, Daou consultants
boast a total of 670 years of experience. “At

Daou, you're not dealing with entry-level people.

Daou hires autonomous, independently-minded '

IT professionals who don’t have to rely heavily

on others to get the job done. At the same time,

they are team-oriented, and have great
communication skills. But the experience is the
most important factor. They’ve done five laps
around the track already in the expertise and

best practices they bring to customers.”

And sometimes, espec1ally in a situation where
Daou is subcontracted to another company like
the CITPO work, Daou’s contribution isn’t as-
visible as others’ involved in the project. But
being in the spodight isn’t what matters to Greg
and his colleagues. “Getting credit is secondary

to getting the job done,” says Greg.

Thie Gustomer st Be Satishen

Greg sees a growing overlap in IT issues
between commercial and government
healthcare‘ But Daou also understands the
distinct set of business issues each sector faces.
He speaks glowingly, 100, of the work ethic

at Daou. “My fellow consultants work hard.

The deadline is always the most important

_ thing, and the customer must be satisfied.

If that means working on Saturday afternoon,
or working past midnight, whatever it takes.
We take a certain amount of pride in getting

the "wo'fk done and solving difficult

~production problems.”

"The coni’pany itself? “There’s no doubt in my

mmd we're & much stronger company than
we were:six quarters ago,” says Greg. “The
presence of our'CEO Dan Malcolm has been a

tremendous‘positive for the company. Ever since

" he’s been on board, our position gets stronger.

We're riot gomg anywhere We’re here to stay.

We're well- posmoned to seize opportunities in

" new technolog1es too, llke web services.’

Accordmg o Greg, it all speaks to a strong

future for Daou
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“We're there not just lo install technology.

I know how.

We're there to enable our clients’ success.”

Chris Kent 1t says a great deal about a compeany when an employee '
Derecton, leceves — and thew vetwrns., After a 24-month stinl af one
Infrastructure Services Group of the world’s lavgest suppliers of networking equipment
Jor the Internet, Chris Kentd caime home 1o Daow in 2001
What excites him most about the company? The way it

appoaches mobile health.

it's About Focus

“In healthcare today, there is a tremendous emphasis
on mobhilizing providers with wireless technology to
improve patient care,” says Chris. “Having data readily
available [on mobile devices] means care providers can :

quickly make decisions and better serve their patients.”

Yet the rush o wireless has many healthcare

IT organizations making less than prudent

decisions in implementing the technology.
That’s where Daou comes in, and with it
Chris™ expertise in guiding project teams
to develop mobile health solutions that

take a strategic, enterprise-wide approach.

His role? “I act as a project executive Lo ensure ‘
we are meeting client needs, thar we are on

4

schedule, on budget — and that we're delivering '

quality and service superior to what healthcare |

organizations typically find in the marketplace.”

The Real Challenge

“Mobile health is so much more than ‘going

wireless,’” says Chris. “Doctors and other medical




staff have pushed providers to purchase wireless
systems, and often our initial call is to help install
these systems at hospitals. I help our clients look
at what they’re really trying to do from an

enterprise-wide perspective.”

The technology part of mobile health is the
easiest part to implement, according to Chris.
“Sure, you can go in and design a wireless
network, put up access points, turn them on
and provide Radio Frequency (RF) technology
throughout a facility,” he says. But that’s only a

small part of how Daou prefers to do mobile health.

“The real challenge comes in helping organizations
use the technology to its full capabilities,” says
Chris. And that means synchronizing technology
with the way people do their jobs. With business
and clinjcal processes. With the underlying IT

infrastructure that supports all those things.

Wireless ar Mebils Heallh?

Chris says that 90 percent of his job involves
educating clients about better ways to do things.
“You have to take an approach of helping providers
take a step back and say, ‘How am I really going to
use wireless technology? Electronic medical records?
Bedside charting? Medication administration?””
Once those questions are answered, he works with
providers to identfy how the technology will impact
the flow of information from point to point to point
within a hospital, how it will support existing processes
and enable new ones. The phrase is business process
alignment, and it's essential to any new technology
initative that’s worth its sal¢, according to Chris.
“There's wireless technology and then there’s mobile
health. We’re not there just to install technology.

We're there to enable our clients’ success.”

Like the other two Daou employees featured in this
Annual Report, Chris is proud of the company’s

strategic focus, and the way it has executed its

market reemergence strategy. “Everyone I work
with has integrity and takes pride in what they
do,” he says. “Thanks to our management team,
the company has transformed itself. You can see
that not only internally, but also with our customers
and their level of satisfaction. We are exceptional
within our market space, and our customer

success stories prove it."

A Team of Experls

Daou’s reputation is the result of two factors, he
says. “We not only have savwvy IT know-how, but
we also have practical experience in healthcare.”
Few so-called competitors can boast that unique

union of expertise, according to Chris.

But Chris, like so many Daou consultants, is never
content. “T derive satisfaction from ensuring that
my group does not become complacent — and

that includes me. We must continue to push the
envelope. I get satsfaction from helping develop
solutions for our customers that go beyond ‘pots

‘n’ pans’ technology.”

In many instances, it's a matter of helping
customers gain a clearer perspective. Not only
providing answers, but b/eing sure they are asking
the right questions, too. “Wé want customers to
fully understand what the réquirements and
drivers are, the impact on the business as a
whole, and how they can fully utilize the
architecture we are imp]emen'ting,” says Chris.
“We want to provide them with a leve] of service

that goes beyond just turning wrenches.”

Chris is excited about Daou’s new RAPID. IT
Solutions, particularly the mobile health one, and

he likes the strategic intent behind the program.
“R.A.PLD. makes all the resources from every

corner within our company more readily

available to serve our customers,” he says.
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[ kn()w IZOw_ “My job is one of helping people manage change.”

Theresa St. Peter Consultant or catalysi? How about a bit of both. Theresa !
Project Manage, St Peter has spent the lust six years with Daoi Sysiems

Application Services as an application sexvices expert, the last two of which

she spent working with the lavgest wnlti-state Medicaid

managed caie mganization in the U.S. Now she is on

asstgninent i Massachusetts, where she is assisting a

iafor fealth pla ta vealign its business fuocesses with

« wewr enderprise software application. In doing so, she

s helping people make the most of vew lechnology.

it's Ahout People

Belore joining Daou, Theresa spent 16 years in adul

cducation and training. She often calls upon that .
experience in her work with Daou’s clients as

they automate paperbased processes and
implement consumer-driven healthcare ‘
solutions that make it easy for individuals i

Lo access informaton about their

health benefits. Those solutions are
revolutionizing the payer segment

of the healthcare market.

“My job is often one of helping people '
manage change,” says Theresa. “I help

clients create a new mindset, 1o see the !

things they can gain” with new technology

applications as an enabler.

Peaple respond differently to change, Theresa
notes with appreciation. She has many engagements

in which she offers very little advice, and gets




right into the roles of business process alignment
and project management. Yet on one engagement
she spent 80 percent of her time mentoring the
client, providing counsel and direction on how

things might be done differently.

The Clent-Centric Apnroach

During her Daou career, Theresa has supported
many types of applications at both payer

and provider sites, and her work includes
implementation support, business process
support, project management support and
training. But as core IT systems are updated,
emerging technologies are added, and
organizations move from one IT environment
to another, business process and workflow
expertise like Theresa's is becoming more and

more central to Daou’s consulting engagements.

In doing her job, Theresa always takes the client-
centric approach — often viewed as uncommon
in today’s consulting world. “I may pull project
team members together into a conference room
at the client’s site, and lead a discussion about a
particular scenario they are trying to build into
an IT system, or about a particular issue they

are trying to resolve,” she says. “We’ll go through
all the options and lay out the pros and cons.
We work with them to encourage them to make

their own decisions, rather than doing it for them.”

Other times, she'll do ‘shadowing,’ sitting with
someone while he or she works and offering
advice on better ways to use new technology to
do a particular job. The job requires sensitivity,
skill and the utmost respect for what makes a

healthcare organization unique.

[ Wealh of ReSoUrces
As Theresa travels from client site to client site,
does she ever feel out of touch? Not at all.

“There is a wealth of knowledge backing me

up,” she says. “With Daou, I have people I can

turn to who can help mentor me.”

For example, on one occasion she needed
input regarding provider demographics and
how to handle multiple addresses within a
certain software application. “I was trying to get
advice on what my colleagues have seen with
their clients, and whether they could provide a
recommendation on the best way to set it up. I
got multiple responses and lots of different

options. It was a great help.”

1t’s one example of how Daou’s clients benefit
from the accumulated experience of the entire
organization. There are many other examples.
“Our relationships with software vendors are
good,” says Theresa. “In fact, we can help drive
some of the enhancements those vendors are

making based on the way the market is moving.”

Qutside the Bax

It’s a gratifying job. “On my last assignment,
people couldn’t thank me enough for the
experience I was able to provide them. I
recently did a six-week training session for
their configuration team, and they were ‘in
a little box.” They didn’t want to change the

way they had done things.”

But after the course was finished, the tone
changed, according to Theresa. “Once they
went through my training class, many of them
came up and said, ‘You know what? There are
other ways to do this system. We never realized
it. Now we can go back and do a better job that
will mean less maintenance for us down the
road.’ It really made me feel good to know that

I had made a difference.”

Making a difference. Like all Daou employees,

Theresa takes great pride in that.

2003 Annual Report
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The industry

Daow was featured in these and other leading

publications — prind and online — in 2003,

knows Daou.

- ._TMHI agenient
ﬁﬂﬂ?‘ SEIRSANY)

INFORMATICS

The Brand Build-Out

The 2002 Annual Report recapped “The
Branding of Daou,” the initative that began
that year to create broader recognition of
Daou’s understanding of industry issues, and
its expertise in guiding customers through
their strategic and tactical IT challenges.
That effort, with its ongoing investment in
marketing and public relations, paid

dividends in 2003,

Company coverage for the year included:
¢ 8 articles by Daou emplovees
* 18 articles quoting Daou employees

* 50+ other mentions of the company

Many of these were sparked by press releases
announcing the successful completion of
strategic client engagements, as well as the

awarding of key contracts.

The Daou Value Equation? The company’s
growing reputation as an industry thought

leader is a part of it, 1o00.
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PARTI

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All forward-looking
statements are inherently uncertain as they are based on current expectations and assumptions
concerning future events or future performance of Daou Systems, Inc. (“Daou”). You should not
place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which are only predictions and speak only
as of the date hereof. Forward-looking statements usually contain the words “estimate,” “anticipate,”
“hope”, “believe,” “think”, “expect,” “intend”, “plan” or similar expressions, and are subject to
numerous known and unknown risks and uncertainties. In evaluating such statements, you should
carefully review various risks and uncertainties identified in this report, including the matters set
forth under the captions “Risk Factors” and in Daou’s other SEC filings. These risks and
uncertainties could cause Daou’s actual results to differ materially from those indicated in the
forward-looking statements. We do not undertake any obligation to update or publicly announce
revisions to any forward-looking statements to reflect future events or developments.

Item 1: Business.
General

Daou provides integrated information technology (“IT”) solutions and services to the U.S.
healthcare industry. Since 1987, we have provided IT services to approximately 1,600 customers,
including many of the nation’s hospitals, top 100 integrated delivery networks (“IDNs”), government
healthcare organizations, health plans, insurance companies and managed care organizations. Our
focus is on providing healthcare organizations with cost effective solutions to extend the useful life
of legacy systems through the integration of emerging technologies and applications. By unlocking
the potential of their existing systems to support emerging technologies to stay competitive, and then
implementing those technologies in a rapid, affordable way that delivers results, we are helping
healthcare organizations solve their biggest IT challenge. Our services include infrastructure and
network services, application implementation and support, application development and integration
of internet-based services, management consulting, and advanced technologies. As of March 15,
2004, we had 163 employees.

We remarket certain third-party applications and solutions, such as portals, through business
partners. We sell no proprietary hardware, although our network solutions may include the resale of
certain third-party products. Through extensive research and our payer and provider CIO Forums and
Advisory Boards, we have the opportunity to fine-tune our strategic plans and service offerings with
influential healthcare executives. Daou’s operating philosophy is to meet or exceed the customer’s
objectives and to pursue excellence in every area in which our professional staff works.

Daou Systems, Inc. was originally incorporated in California on July 16, 1987 and was
reincorporated in Delaware on November 15, 1996, Our principal executive offices are located at 412
Creamery Way, Suite 300, Exton, Pennsylvania 19341. You may contact us by telephone
(800.578.3268), by facsimile (610.594.7683) or by e-mail (info@daou.com).

We maintain a website where information concerning our business can be found. The address of
our Internet website is http://www.daou.com. We provide a link on our website, under Investor
Relations, to our filings with the SEC, including our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports
on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form §-K, and all amendments to those reports. These documents
are generally available on the same day they are electronically filed with or furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission. The information available on or through our website is not a
part of this or any report we file with or furnish to the SEC.

In addition, Daou’s Board of Directors has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for
all Company directors, officers and employees. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is posted
on Daou’s website (www.daou.com). This document is also available in print form to any
shareholder who requests it. Requests should be sent to Investor Relations at Daou Systems, Inc., 412
Creamery Way, Suite 300, Exton, Pennsylvania 19341.
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Customers

We provide IT services to many of the nation’s hospitals, top 100 integrated delivery networks,
government healthcare organizations, health plans, insurance companies and managed care
organizations. As a “trusted advisor” to leading organizations in the payer/insurer segment of the
market, we provide consultative services to health maintenance organizations (“HMOs”), health
insurers, Blue Cross and Blue Shield plans and independent practice associations. Our provider
customers include hospitals, IDNs, medical groups, academic medical centers, physician groups and
ancillaries. In addition, we provide IT services to government healthcare organizations, third-party
administrators, medical services organizations, service vendors, software vendors and hardware
vendors. We believe that our key competitive advantage is our core understanding of our client’s
complex healthcare environment based on our extensive knowledge and experience in the healthcare
industry. All or substantially all of our revenues for the past three years have been derived from
customers in the United States.

Services

We focus exclusively on healthcare 1T and have diverse technical resources. We design and
implement solutions to help healthcare organizations navigate the intersection of legacy systems with
emerging technologies, such as web portals, wireless and other portable computing solutions. We
believe that this offers our customers a combination of healthcare-familiar and practice-driven
technology experts that factor in how each individual project works within the customer’s IT
strategic plan. In addition, our healthcare engineers and technicians are experienced with many types
of technology, such as integration, software application development, networking, interfacing,
database management, data security and help desk consulting. We work with clients to provide real-
world solutions that work with their clinical and business processes. We provide services through
two practice groups: commercial healthcare and government healthcare.

Commercial Healthcare

Daou’s commercial healthcare practice serves both the health delivery and the payer segments
of the industry. We believe that the healthcare industry faces a variety of challenges, including lower
reimbursements, rising premiums, increased physician demand for clinical transformation and
integration, and the need to improve quality of care and information management processes without
harming financial performance.

We seek to position Daou as a company with the know-how to help our customers out of the
dilemma that faces so many healthcare organizations today—organizations that can’t afford to
replace their legacy systems, and can’t afford not to. Many organizations are unable to afford multi-
million dollar system replacements/upgrades proposed by large software application vendors.

We believe that our healthcare domain expertise, vision, applications and technology, and
customer service position Daou to better serve the commercial healthcare IT field in the following
areas:

* Infrastructure—Assessment, Design and Implementation

*  Application Implementation and Support

* Application Development and Integration

¢ Management Consulting

* Advanced Technologies

Daou’s infrastructure services are focused on two vital components of a healthcare
organization’s infrastructure: the information technology itself and the experts who manage it. We
assist the healthcare marketplace in the assessment, design, implementation, integration and support
of legacy and emerging network services and systems. We provide solutions in key areas, including

servers/directories, security, wireless and desktop. The success of our infrastructure services
emanates from our core understanding of the client’s complex healthcare environment. Qur primary
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focus is in helping clients extend the value of legacy systems and enabling them to work with
emerging technologies, such as web portals, wireless and other portable computing devices. We
support healthcare organizations in all stages of infrastructure design and implementations, from the
requisition and purchase of hardware to the installation and support of turn-key data networks.

Our infrastructure consultants evaluate the customer’s computer network system and provide
recommendations for new network capabilities and capacity on an ongoing basis consistent with the
evolving needs and strategy of the customer. In addition, we evaluate hardware and software options,
interpret research and development results, update existing network designs and research specific
products and technologies of interest to customers. We provide additional technical personnel to
customers during periods of peak network requirements to accommodate and assist in network
upgrade implementation or to accommodate the anticipated or unanticipated need for additional
technical staff.

The engagement period for infrastructure design and implementation services generally ranges
from three to nine months, although certain projects have required a year or more for compietion, and
varies depending on the size and complexity of the implementation project. Services are generally
performed on a time and expense basis and billed semi-monthly or monthly. Certain projects,
generally those with significant hardware components, are performed on a fixed-fee basis, with
revenue recognized as services are performed.

In the area of long-term infrastructure solutions, we offer on-site management services that are
designed to maintain the effective performance of a customer’s computer network system. As
healthcare IT systems become more complex, organizations are experiencing difficulties in hiring,
training and retaining information technology professionals who can maintain the performance and
functionality of their advanced systems. Accordingly, healthcare organizations have begun to
outsource certain functions of their information systems departments. We will work with the
customer to assess the appropriate staffing needs to maintain and support its computer network
system. We will place our employees on-site on a full-time basis to provide network support services
and ongoing training of the customer’s internal staff. We generally provide these services in multi-
year engagements on a fixed-price basis, with revenue recognized over the term of the agreement.

Daou’s vendor-certified application implementation and support teams have helped many of
the nation’s largest payer and provider organizations successfully implement and support
applications from The TriZetto® Group, Epic Systems, McKesson Corporation, QCSI, Siemens
Medical Solutions Health Services, CSC and many others. We are proficient in many of the most
frequently used healthcare applications for both the payer and provider markets. Together with our
provider sector experts, we have assisted over 750 payer and provider organizations to implement
software applications solutions.

We have developed a rigorous, cost-effective methodology that drives on-time, on-budget
implementations. Our application implementation and support services include:

¢ Transition Services. Migrating from one system to another is far more complex than
simply turning one computer on and one off on a specified date. The process of change, or
transition, to a new methodology begins with the elemental recognition that a new system or
process is needed. How well an organization navigates through the change of an
implementation will determine the success of the project. For two decades, we have helped
clients transition their organizations through the myriad changes system migration
engenders. And, because transition involves nuances of organizational development and
communication with stakeholders at all levels, the nuances must be managed prudently.

»  Application Technical Support. The overlapping departmental and organizational
responsibilities in healthcare require innovative technical solutions to manage and
communicate data effectively. Our technical application support specialists plan and
implement solutions related to system and data conversions, custom interface development,
integration engine support, data extracts and e-commerce services, report writing and
automated document production and distribution.




*  Application and Operational Systems Support. Work doesn’t stop at the end of the
implementation. Changing operational environments, new business needs, additional
regulatory requirements and even changes in personnel create perpetual challenges. Qur
operational and application support specialists help our customers leverage their initial
investment to create ongoing returns. We focus our efforts in areas where technology and
operations often meet, including system and personnel transition management, system
evaluation and improvement, operational evaluation and improvement, application
modification and support, interim business office management/model office and data
consolidation and preparation.

* Application Procurement. We provide expert assistance in system selection, and we guide
clients through the five critical stages of a successful procurement effort: 1) Planning;
2) Requirements Definition; 3) Vendor Evaluation; 4) Contract Negotiations; and 5) Pre-
Implementation Planning.

»  Application Implementation Services. A system implementation consists of more than just
converting files, installing programs and plugging in equipment. Knowledge of the process,
including timelines, approach, resource selection and key project strategies, is critical to
project success. Our implementation teams include project managers, configuration
strategists, configuration analysts and other specialized support personnel, all with broad
implementation experience and deep knowledge of the methodology necessary to make the
process go smoothly.

*  Knowledge Management/Reporting Services. From key management performance
indicators to the detail data on a specific contract or business arrangement, it is critical to
optimize an organization’s data to meet its strategic business needs. Timely, accurate,
accessible data is indeed a universal business requirement, and yet many organizations are
challenged to make this a reality. Daou has assisted many clients in the last 20 years through
development of strategy, system selection, implementation and deployment, and report
development.

*  Project Management. Implementation project management is the initiation, continued
driving and persistent follow-up of all activities and tasks throughout the continuum of the
project lifecycle: Planning/Orient/Design, Load/Development, Test/Train, Go Live and
Post-implementation. Three key areas of focus are: planning, people management and
subject knowledge. We understand healthcare needs in all these areas, and work closely with
clients to deliver projects that consistently meet management’s goals.

Application implementation and support services are typically provided on a time and expense
basis. The engagement period for these services typically averages six months, but varies depending
on the size and complexity of the project. Implementation projects can last one to two years.

Preserving, optimizing and extending the life cycle of existing systems is one of the key
challenges facing the healthcare industry today. We help healthcare organizations maximize the
value of their current and planned systems. Our application development and integration solutions
are designed to enable organizations to cost-effectively access information and communicate across
the enterprise despite systems running on disparate platforms in different environments. By
developing interfaces, implementing existing interfaces, web-enabling a system or migrating to new,
more compatible systems, we can help organizations streamline their technology to avoid
information roadblock. Our custom integration skills can get clinical, lab and financial systems
working in unison, while extending the value of legacy products and infrastructure. Our system
integration and data extraction capabilities have helped commercial and government clients for over
20 years. Our application development and integration solutions include: custom programming,
system integration engines, conversions and upgrades.

The engagement period for application development and integration services generally ranges
from six to nine months, but varies depending on the size and complexity of the project. Services are
typically invoiced monthly on a time and expense basis.

Daou’s management consulting know-how helps organizations meet the many challenges
surrounding increasing competition, growing member and patient service demands, expanding
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regulatory requirements and the confusing horizon of emerging technologies. We provide solutions
through key consulting services that include: strategic IT planning, security and privacy consulting,
including readiness assessment, planning and remediation related to the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), eHealth and mHealth strategic planning, system
procurement and transition management.

In the area of general consulting, our most senior consultants provide counsel on business
process improvement, business strategy and critical management problem solving, planning, and
procurement of medical management care systems, hospital systems and management systems. The
engagement period for management consulting services typically averages three to six months, but
varies depending on the size and complexity of the project.

Daou’s advanced technology team is focused on providing Web connectivity solutions that
enable healthcare organizations to achieve an enterprise wide platform that integrates their disparate
assortment of legacy networks and application systems. We couple our know-how with specialized
technologies to provide Web services, single sign-on capability, advanced security, and mobile health
on a single web operating platform designed for multiple portal solutions (i.e., Provider, Patient,
Employee, and Community).

Government Healthcare

Daou has extensive experience developing, implementing and/or supporting data extractions,
commercial off-the-shelf (COTS) product integration, and module support for government heaithcare
organizations including the Military Health System, the Indian Health Services and Veterans Health
Administration. Our systems integration solutions enable government healthcare organizations to
cost-effectively access information and communicate across the enterprise in spite of the fact that
systems run on disparate platforms in different environments.

In addition to offering those services provided by our commercial healthcare practice, our
government healthcare services include:

e Custom Programming. We provide instrument interfaces, specialized reporting
requirements, web-enabled, back-end systems allowing real-time results and support for
legacy and “sunsetted” systems.

«  System Integration Engines. We are experienced in optimizing leading system integration
engines and opening up MUMPS-based systems to current or emerging technologies
through our proprietary integration engine.

*  Conversions and Upgrades. Fulfilling reporting requirements through data extraction,
cleansing and scrubbing for warehouses and relational databases.

By developing interfaces, implementing existing interfaces, Web-enabling a system, or
migrating data to more compatible systems, our government healthcare practice provides federal
healthcare systems with low-cost methods of sharing data between legacy systems, on-line
transaction processing systems, and off-the-shelf applications, regardless of technology platform or
location. In addition, our capabilities include building and supporting the M/MUMPS-based systems
typically used by government-run healthcare organizations. The group’s consultants are experienced
in healthcare information systems such as CHCS, VistA and RPMS.

The engagement period for these services generally ranges from nine to twelve months, but
varies depending on the size and complexity of the project. Services are typically invoiced semi-
monthly or monthly on a time and expense basis.

Recruiting and Training of Technical Employees

We dedicate significant time and resources to recruit, train and retain qualified technical
personnel. Our technical personnel include consultants, engineers and technicians providing
healthcare IT consulting, managed care systems implementation, application implementation and
support, application development and integration, communications infrastructure, outsourcing,
Internet and emerging technology services. We use both internal and external recruiters to attract
technical personnel.




Our technical personnel undergo extensive training and certification from leading healthcare,
technology and integration vendors such as: Siemens Medical Solutions, McKesson Corporation,
Eclipsys, Cerner, Epic, IDX, TriZetto, PerSe, QCSI, Microsoft, Cisco, Marconi, Nortel, Novell,
Checkpoint, Citrix, Sun Microsystems, HP, Compaq and SeeBeyond. In addition, we are a member
of leading technological forums and organizations, including HIMSS and CHIME.

We believe that our future success will depend in large part on our ability to hire, train and
retain qualified technical personnel who together have expertise in a wide array of sophisticated IT
solutions and a broad understanding of the healthcare payer and provider organizations that we serve.
Competition for qualified technical personnel is intense and is expected to increase. Consequently,
there can be no assurance that we will be successful in attracting and retaining such personnel. If we
are unable to hire, train and retain a sufficient number of qualified technical personnel, our ability to
adequately manage and complete our existing projects or to obtain new projects could be impaired.
This could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations. See “—Risk Factors—Loss of Key Personnel Could Adversely Affect Our Business;
—Our executive management team is in transition; —We do not have employment agreements with
most of our key business managers.”

Each technical employee is required to enter into a confidentiality and proprietary information
agreement with Daou. This agreement is designed to protect our trade secrets and other confidential
information during and subsequent to employment. Any significant loss of employees to a
competitor, or our inability to enforce a confidentiality and proprietary information agreement could
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Sales and Marketing

We seek to establish long-term relationships with our customers by providing a high level of
service and by becoming a trusted advisor to information technology executives and their operational
staffs. We focus our sales and marketing efforts on the CIOs and other technology decision-makers
of hospitals, IDNs, government healthcare organizations and their prime contractors, managed care
and insurance companies and other healthcare provider organizations. To develop new business
opportunities, we rely on our reputation in the marketplace, the personal contacts and networking of
our professionals, our promotional events including Daou CIO Forums and national, industry
conferences such as HIMSS, our relationships with business partners and the various programs of our
marketing department. We also receive sales leads directly from consultants, value-added resellers,
and product and service vendors.

The principal objectives of our marketing department are to increase Daou’s market presence,
provide strategic direction and generate sales leads. We receive valuable feedback from our
customers, Advisory Boards, CIO Forums, and outside advisors. Based on this feedback, our
marketing program positions Daou as a thought leader in healthcare information technology with
application, infrastructure, and integration expertise and the know-how to make information
technology work for healthcare organizations. We believe that Daou is well positioned to serve the
growing demand for application and technology solutions that extend the useful life of legacy
systems and integrate them with emerging technologies.

We have entered into marketing agreements with certain third party vendors to market our
services to their respective customer bases, and we intend to pursue additional marketing agreements
and alliances as part of our marketing plan and business development efforts.

Daou CIO Forums, Advisory Boards, and Public Relations

As a supplement to our direct selling efforts, the marketing department has developed
advertising campaigns, tradeshow participation, public relations programs, marketing research and
communications and sales presentation materials. Public speaking engagements and the publication
of technical articles and reports directed to the healthcare information technology industry enhance
our marketing efforts and strengthen our thought leadership position. We also continue to develop
our presence on the Internet through our corporate website and online advertising.
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The Company continued to invest in the CIO Forum program (launched in 2002), holding six
Forums in 2003 in major cities across the country which brought together over 100 CIOs in one-day
educational sessions addressing key issues, trends, challenges and opportunities within the industry.
The Forums consistently receive high quality ratings from participants, and generate new sales
opportunities. Based on the insights garnered from two years of Forum seminars, Daou published a
CIO briefing paper, The Pulse of the Industry, that is shared with CIO Forum participants and editors
of leading HIT publications. The Puise of the Industry is available to the public through
www.daou.com. CIO Forum participants are reimbursed for lodging and meal expenses incurred in
connection with attendance at a CIO Forum.

Daou maintains two distinct Advisory Boards which are non-governing bodies comprised of
CIOs from leading healthcare provider organizations (Daou Provider Advisory Board), and CIOs
from organizations within the payer segment (Daou Payer Advisory Board). The Advisory Boards
meet semi-annually to provide advice on issues and trends in the healthcare industry and emerging
technologies, as well as to provide strategic direction and feedback regarding our current and future
services. Daou brought the two boards together for the first time in the fall of 2003. The meeting was
noteworthy for facilitating dialogue between two groups of HIT executives who typically do not
interact with one another in their professional domains. The dialogue provided Daou with new
strategic considerations regarding payer/provider interfaces. Members of an Advisory Board are
reimbursed for travel, lodging and meal expenses incurred in connection with attendance at an
Advisory Board’s sessions.

Daou invested in a public relations effort to establish thought leadership in strategic areas
(including mobile health and web services) through published articles in leading industry
publications. Daou issued 17 press releases in 2003 announcing new contracts, initiatives, and
strategic programs; the successful completion of long-term projects; and key organizational changes.
The Company was covered in approximately 26 articles and was quoted or referenced in 54 print and
online publications. We intend to continue our public relations initiatives thronghout 2004.

Intellectual Property and Proprietary Information

Our ability to compete effectively depends in part on our intellectual property and proprietary
information, including our proprietary methodologies, best practices, research, tools, information
systems, databases and other information and procedures. We rely on a combination of copyright
laws, non-disclosure agreements and other confidentiality procedures to protect Daou’s intellectual
property and proprietary information. However, these protections may not be sufficient, and they do
not prevent independent third-party development of competitive products or services. See “—Risk
Factors—Any failure or inability to protect our technology and confidential information could
adversely affect our business.”

Competition

The healthcare IT services industry is comprised of a large number of participants and is subject
to rapid change and intense competition. Further challenges, complexities and occasionally,
opportunities, arise from the fact that healthcare IT vendors with specialty services may find
themselves collaborating on one customer mission and competing on another. We believe that the
principal competitive factors in the markets in which Daou competes include reputation, healthcare
industry expertise, system performance and reliability, timely delivery of services, quality of service,
responsiveness to customers, product knowledge and technological expertise, marketing, customer
relationships and price.

Many of our competitors have significantly greater financial, technical and marketing resources
and greater name recognition than we do. Our competitors include:

» consulting firms such as First Consulting Group, Inc., and Superior Consultant Holdings
Corporation;

+ the consulting divisions or former affiliates of the major accounting firms;
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* healthcare information technology companies such as The TriZetto Group, McKesson
Corporation and Siemens Medical Solutions;

* systems integrators such as Science Applications International Corporation, Electronic Data
Systems Corporation and Perot Systems Corporation;

* health care portal companies and network equipment vendors.

In addition to these major companies, we also compete with smaller regional IT systems firms,
which have a niche in selected geographic areas of the country.

We have faced, and will continue to face, additional competition from new entrants into our
markets. Other healthcare information technology companies not presently offering or emphasizing
application and network systems services, and large network services companies not currently
focusing on healthcare may enter the markets in which we compete. Increased competition could
result in price reductions, fewer customer projects, under-utilization of employees, reduced operating
margins and loss of market share, any of which could materially and adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully against current and
future competitors. In addition, most of our customers have internal IT support and service
capabilities and could choose to satisfy their needs through internal resources rather than through
outside service providers. As a result, any decision by our customers or potential customers to
perform IT services internally or choose one of our competitors could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations. See “—Risk Factors—We operate in
highly competitive markets.”

Employees

As of December 31, 2003, we employed 204 technology and support professionals involved in
infrastructure and network services, application implementation and support, application
development and integration, management consulting, strategic outsourcing, sales and marketing,
business development, information technology, finance and accounting, human resources, company
leadership and administration. We use internal and external recruiters for the hiring of our technical
and support professionals. We also have an internal referral bonus program throughout the
organization to encourage employees to refer or recommend qualified professionals to join us.
Referring employees are rewarded with a bonus for each candidate hired by us. Our employees are
not represented by a labor union.

We plan to reduce our overall workforce by March 31, 2004 by an aggregate of approximately
25%, due to the previously announced closing of the Daou Technology Center and reduced demand
for our professional services in the payer and government markets, and the resulting realignment of
our overhead personnel.

Risk Factors

An investment in Daou’s Common Stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully
consider the following risk factors and warnings. The risks described below are not the only ones
facing us. Additional risks that we do not yet know of or that we currently think are immaterial may
also impair our business operations. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business,
financial condition or results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. In such case,
the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you could lose all or part of your
investment. You should also refer to the other information set forth in this report, including our
Financial Statements and the related notes.

Many factors may cause our revenues, operating income and cash flow results to fluctuate and
possibly decline.

Historically, we have experienced significant quarterly fluctuations in our operating results due
to shifts in demand for our services, the commencement and completion of large fixed-fee contracts,
and the closure and wind down of operating units and difficulties in successfully integrating our
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acquired companies. Variations in our revenues and operating results are expected to continue from
time to time, due to various factors, including:

e our efforts to achieve a successful sales program and to secure and deliver new customer
contracts at the budgeted rate;

¢ industry spending patterns and market conditions that may affect adversely the buying
decisions of our current and prospective customers;

« the long sales cycle in obtaining new customers and larger contracts;

+ the timing and extent of employee training or the loss of key employees or executive
officers; :

e increased competition and pricing pressure;
* government regulations;

¢ the reduction in size, delay in commencement, interruption or termination of one or more
significant projects;

+ the loss or termination of business relationships with software/hardware vendors, hospital
groups, health plans or government agencies;

¢ the failure to estimate accurately the resources required to complete new or ongoing
projects, including increased labor costs due to delays in project delivery schedules;

+ the commencement or completion during a quarter of one or more significant projects;
* variations in the product or professional service content of our projects;
° the development and introduction of new services;

» the continued effect of acquisitions, including additional administrative staffing and other
increased infrastructure requirements to integrate the newly acquired companies; and

» the effect of negative publicity relating to our litigation and operations.

Accordingly, we believe that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of operating results for preceding
quarters are not necessarily meaningful. You should not rely on results of any one quarter as an
indication of our future performance.

We have a history of losses and our future profitability is uncertain.

We incurred losses in each year from 1997 through 2002. As of December 31, 2003, we had an
accumulated deficit of approximately $38 million. Although we were profitable in 2003, our ability
to maintain profitability is dependent on a number of factors, including our ability to secure new and
maintain existing customers, the development and introduction of new services, industry spending
patterns and market conditions and our ability to manage project risks. The markets in which we
compete are highly competitive, and we may not be successful in increasing our market presence,
growing our business or achieving profitability. As a result, we are unable to predict accurately
whether there will be, and the extent of, any future losses.

We depend on a small number of large customers to provide a significant portion of our
revenue,

We receive a significant portion of our revenue from a relatively small number of large
customers, some of whom operate under a single contract. From year to year our largest customers
may not be the same organizations, A majority of our customers are able to reduce or cancel their use
of our services before the end of the contract term, subject to certain monetary penalties. If these
customers terminate or modify existing contracts or experience business difficulties, it could
materially and adversely affect our revenue and earnings. Delays in reassigning staff and the
resulting under-utilization of these employees would negatively impact our operating results and
financial condition. As a pércentage of total net revenue, our five largest customers accounted for
approximately 41% for the year ended December 31, 2003, 32% for the year ended December 31,
2002, and 33% for the year ended December 31, 2001.

A substantial majority of our operating expenses are fixed.

Though our revenue fluctuates from quarter to quarter, the substantial majority of our operating
expenses, particularly personnel and related costs, depreciation and rent, are relatively fixed.
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Accordingly, a variation in the timing of the commencement or completion of customer projects or
contracts may cause significant variations in operating results from quarter to quarter and could result
in losses for a particular quarter. In addition, an unanticipated delay or termination of a major project
or contract, or a series of smaller projects or contracts, could require Daou to maintain or terminate
under-utilized employees, which could result in higher than expected expenses during a quarter.

We operate in highly competitive markets.

We operate in intensely competitive markets. We cannot assure you that we will be able to
compete successfully against current and future competitors or that competitive pressures faced by us
will not have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our long sales and project delivery cycles may adversely affect financial performance.

Our sales process is often subject to delays associated with the lengthy approval process that
typically accompanies significant capital expenditures by a customer. During this process, we expend
substantial time, effort and resources marketing our services, preparing contract proposals and
negotiating contracts. Any failure to procure a signed contract after expending significant time, effort
and resources could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The implementation cycles for our network implementation, software application
implementation, Web portal and outsourcing projects generally require a significant commitment of
resources by Daou and by the customer. The length of time required to complete a project may
depend on many factors outside of our control. In some instances, projects have been prolonged
substantially as a result of delays attributable to customers. Any delay or failure to receive payment
for our services after expending significant time, effort and resources could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, if we fail to deliver
services on a timely and cost-efficient basis, our business, financial condition and results of
operations could be materially and adversely affected.

New technologies or industry standards could render our services obsolete or unmarketable.

We receive a significant portion of our revenue from projects based on complex healthcare
applications and computer networks. The markets for software applications and computer network
products and services are continuing to develop and are characterized by rapid change, including
emerging technologies. If we fail to meet the changing demands of technology, we may not continue
to be able to compete successfully with other providers of software applications and technology
solutions.

Our success depends on our ability to offer services, products, and skilled and competent
professionals to keep pace with continuing changes in technology, evolving industry standards and
the changing preferences of our healthcare customers.

We cannot make assurances that products, systems, methodologies, or technologies developed
by third parties will not render one or more of our services noncompetitive or obsolete.

We could lose customers and revenue if we fail to manage project risks or performance
standards.

Many of our service agreements contain performance standards or deliverables. Some of our
contracts with customers permit termination in the event our performance is not consistent with
service levels specified in those contracts. Our failure to perform services that meet customers’
expectations may result in not getting paid for services rendered. Further, if customers are not
satisfied with our level of performance, our reputation could be damaged and our ability to attract
new business may be materially and adversely affected.
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Qur insurance coverage may not be sufficient to cover potential claims.

Although we maintain errors and omissions insurance, there can be no assurance that such
insurance coverage would adequately cover any claims asserted against us. Consequently, these
potential claims could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results
of operations. For example, any failure by our computer network systems to provide accurate,
reliable and timely information could result in claims against us. We are also subject to claims by
customers for actions of our employees which may have caused damages to customers’ businesses or
otherwise.

Customers may defer, modify or cancel a project on short notice.

Many of our consulting contracts are cancelable by the customer upon 30 days written notice.
When a customer defers, modifies or cancels a project, we must rapidly redeploy our technical and
other personnel to other projects to minimize the under-utilization of employees and the resulting
adverse impact on our operating results. Furthermore, our operating expenses are relatively fixed and
cannot be reduced on short notice to compensate for unanticipated variations in the number or size of
projects in progress. As a result, any termination, significant reduction or modification of our
business relationships with any of our significant customers or with a number of smaller customers
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating results.

Loss of key personnel could adversely affect our business.

Our business strategy depends in large part on the services of our key management and highly
skilled healthcare technology professionals. Our business also requires that our employees learn and
implement the latest technical applications and innovations for our customers. Our continued ability
to compete effectively in our business depends on our ability to attract, retain and motivate these
individuals. We experience turnover among our technical personnel due in part to the significant time
and travel demands and increased competition for their services. Any inability to hire, train and retain
a sufficient number of qualified personnel could impair our ability to adequately manage and
complete our existing projects or to obtain new customers and projects.

Our executive management team is in transition.

In December 2002, we named Daniel J. Malcolm as our Chief Executive Officer. In January
2003, we named Vincent K. Roach as our Executive Vice President, Commercial Operations and
announced the resignation of Neil R. Cassidy, Chief Financial Officer (effective the second quarter of
2003.) In June 2003, we hired John A. Roberts as our new Chief Financial Officer. John Peterson was
named Vice President and General Manager, Government and Integration Services in April 2003.
This transition of management personnel may adversely affect our operating performance, given the
time required for new senior personnel to assimilate and manage effectively our business operations.

We do not have employment agreements with most of our key business managers.

We do not have employment agreements with most of our key personnel or management team.
The loss of services from one or more of our management or key personnel, or the inability to hire
additional management or key personnel as needed, could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and operating results. We also may not be able to enforce non-compete
agreements, thereby losing business to competitors. In addition, we expect to further grow our
operations and our needs for additional management and key personnel may increase.

Our success depends on our key vendors and partners.

We depend on our software application and product vendor relationships. If our software
application or product vendors terminate or modify existing contracts or experience business
difficulties, or if we are unable to establish new relationships with additional software application or
product vendors, our business could be harmed. We depend, and will continue to depend, on our
business relationships with third-party software application and product vendors. Our success
depends significantly on our ability to maintain our existing relationships with our vendors and to
build new relationships with other vendors in order to enhance our services and application offerings
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and remain competitive. We cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain relationships with our
vendors or establish relationships with new vendors. We cannot assure you that the software,
products or services of our third-party vendors will achieve or maintain market acceptance or
commercial success. Accordingly, we cannot assure you that our existing relationships will result in
sustained business partnerships, successful product or service offerings or the generation of
significant revenue or profits for us.

We do not have exclusive arrangements with our software application and product vendors.

Our arrangements with third-party software application and product vendors are not exclusive.
We cannot assure you that these third-party vendors regard our relationships with them as important
to their own respective businesses and operations. They may reassess their commitment to us at any
time and may choose to develop or enhance their own competing distribution channels and product
support services. If we do not maintain our existing relationships or if the economic terms of our
business relationships change, we may not be able to license and offer these services and products on
commercially reasonable terms or at all. Our inability to obtain any of these licenses could delay
service development or timely introduction of new services and divert our resources. Any such
delays could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and operating results.

Our relationships with key vendors or partners may adversely impact our customer
relationships.

As we form an increasing number of relationships with software application and product
vendors, our customers may perceive that we are not independent from those vendors. Our ability to
obtain consulting and assessment engagements is due in part to our ability to analyze and recommend
solutions while remaining independent from the software and product vendors themselves. If
customers believe we are not independent from software application and product vendors, our ability
to obtain consulting or assessment engagements from customers may be adversely impacted,
resulting in reduced revenue and profits.

We may be unable to manage our future growth and restructured business.

Some of our service lines have experienced periods of rapid growth, and we have restructured in
recent years. This growth and restructuring have placed, and may continue to place, significant
demands on our managerial, operational and financial resources. In addition, in order to manage any
future growth, we must continue to improve and expand our management, operational and financial
systems and controls, including quality control and delivery and service capabilities. If we are unable
to manage our growth or restructuring effectively or are unsuccessful in recruiting or retaining
personnel, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and operating
results.

The consolidation and changing economic environment of the healthcare industry may
negatively impact revenue.

We receive substantially all of our revenue from customers in the healthcare industry.
Consequently, our business is vulnerable to changing conditions affecting this industry. Many
healthcare provider and payer organizations are combining through affiliation and consoclidation to
create larger organizations with greater regional market power and are forming affiliations for
purchasing products and services. This consolidation could reduce our target market and result in the
termination of customer contracts. In particular, some of our customers have scaled back or
terminated their relationship with us following their acquisition, and this trend may continue in the
future. Moreover, consolidated enterprises or affiliated enterprises may try to use their greater
bargaining power to negotiate reductions in the amounts paid to us for services we perform. Any
reduction in the size of our target market or failure to maintain adequate price levels could materially
and adversely affect our revenue and financial condition.

Increasingly complex regulatory environments may increase our risk and our costs.

Increasingly complex regulatory environments affect a number of our services. As an example,
changes in healthcare information privacy laws and regulations may increase our risk of liability and
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increase the cost of some services we offer. In addition, new regulations governing the
standardization and security for healthcare information under HIPAA could significantly impact the
amount, timing and types of services requested by customers.

The healthcare industry also is subject to changing political, economic and regulatory influences
that may affect the procurement practices and operations of participants in the healthcare industry.
Reduced reimbursements may negatively impact the spending patterns and demand for our
information technology services. We cannot predict with any certainty what impact these
developments could have on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our contracts contain pricing risks that affect our revenue and profit.

We offer a portion of our services on a fixed-price, fixed-time frame basis, rather than on a
time-and-expense basis. Consequently, we bear the risk of cost over-runs in connection with these
projects. If we fail to estimate accurately the resources and time required for a-project or fail to
complete our contractual obligations within the committed fixed-time frame, there could be a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Any failure or inability to protect our technology and confidential information could adversely
affect our business.

Our ability to compete effectively depends in part on our intellectual property and proprietary
information, including our proprietary methodologies, best practices, research, tools, information
systems, databases and other information and procedures. There can be no assurance that the steps
we have taken to protect our intellectual property will be adequate to prevent unauthorized use or
misappropriation of our proprietary information. Any significant loss or unauthorized use of our
intellectual property or proprietary information by a competitor could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition or results of operations. We believe that our systems and
procedures and other proprietary rights do not infringe upon the rights of third parties. There can be
no assurance, however, that third parties will not assert infringement claims against Daou or that such
claims will not require protracted and costly litigation, regardless of the merits of such claims.

Our officers and directors have the power to influence the election of directors and the passage
of stockholder proposals.

As of March 15, 2004, Daou’s executive officers, directors and their affiliates beneficially
owned approximately 42% of the outstanding shares of common stock. As a result, these
stockholders can exercise significant influence over all matters requiring stockholder approval,
including the election of directors and approval of significant corporate transactions. This
concentration of ownership also may delay or prevent a change in control of Daou.

Our common stock price is subject to wide fluctuations in value and significant volatility.

Based upon the historical performance of our common stock, we anticipate that the future price
of our common stock may be subject to wide fluctuations because of announcements of:

« impacts relating to our financing/capital structure;
» quarterly fluctuations in our operating results;

e new customer contracts or services by Daou or our competitors, or the loss of a large
customer;

= negative publicity relating to litigation against Daou;

» changes in our pricing policies or those of our competitors;
» strategic relationships or acquisitions;

» general conditions in the market for healthcare IT services;

»  healthcare industry and general market conditions, including HIPAA developments; and
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In addition, in recent years, the stock market in general and the shares of technology companies
in particular have experienced extreme price fluctuations. Fluctuations in the price of our common
stock may be disproportionate or unrelated to our operating performance.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation, bylaws, and Delaware law could deter takeover
attempts.

A number of provisions of Delaware law and our certificate of incorporation and bylaws could
delay, defer or prevent a change in control of Daou and could limit the price that some investors
might be willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock. These provisions:

» prohibit us from engaging in any business combination with any interested stockholder for a
period of three years from the date the person became an interested stockholder unless
specific conditions are met;

* permit our board of directors to issue shares of preferred stock without stockholder approval
on the terms as our board may determine;

» provide for a classified board of directors;
» eliminate the right of our stockholders to act by written consent without a meeting;

* require advanced stockholder notice to nominate directors and raise matters at the annual
stockholders meeting;

* do not permit cumulative voting in the election of directors; and

* allow for the removal of directors only with cause, and only by a two-thirds vote of our
outstanding shares.

Future sales of our common stock could adversely affect the price of our common stock and
our ability to raise additional equity capital.

The sale of substantial amounts of our common stock in the public market, the prospect of these
sales or the sale or issuance of common stock or securities convertible into or exercisable for
common stock could affect adversely the market price of our common stock.

As of December 31, 2003, we had 13,473,044 shares of common stock reserved for future
issuance, as follows: 2,750,000 shares upon conversion of the 2,181,818 outstanding shares of Series
A convertible preferred stock plus accrued dividends, 3,540,000 shares upon exercise of warrants,
6,278,896 shares upon exercise of stock options and 904,148 shares reserved for issuance under our
Employee Stock Purchase Plan. See Item 7 “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Note 8 of the
notes to our audited financial statements as of December 31, 2003 for more information relating to
our preferred stock, common stock, warrants and stock options.
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Item 2: Description of Properties.

Daou leases the following office space for our principal administrative operating and support
facilities:

Approximate

Location Square Footage Expiration Principal Use
Chevy Chase, MD ... ... 12,000 April 2009 Operating and support facilities
Alexandria, VA . ..... .. 17,000 - May 2005 Operating and support facilities(1)
Exton, PA ............ 13,000 March 2009 Corporate Office Facility
Kensington, MD ....... 11,000 February 2004  Operating and support facilities
Indianapolis, IN ....... 6,000 April 2002 Operating and support facilities
Alexandria, VA ... ... .. 4,000 June 2005 Operating and support facilities(1)
Indianapolis, IN ....... 4,000 February 2004 Operating and support facilities

(1) Portions of the property have been subleased.

We continually evaluate the adequacy of our existing facilities and believe that our current and
planned facilities will be adequate for the next twelve months.

Item 3: Legal Proceedings.

IN RE DAOU SYSTEMS SECURITIES LITIGATION

On August 24, 1998, August 31, 1998, September 14, 1998 and September 23, 1998, four
separate complaints were filed against the Company and certain of its officers and directors in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of California. On October 15, 2002, the Court
granted the Company’s Motion to Dismiss the class action complaint, with prejudice. The plaintiffs
timely noticed appeal and filed their Appellants’ Brief with the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeal on
April 9, 2003. On July 2, 2003, the Company filed its Respondents’ Brief and Cross-Appeal. The
Cross-Appeal challenges the trial court’s failure to assess whether the complaint complied with
applicable pleadings standards. After the Appeal and Cross-Appeal were fully briefed, orai
arguments were heard before a panel in February 2004. The Company is currently awaiting the
court’s decision, which is expected after the second quarter 2004.

As background, a group of shareholders were appointed the lead plaintiff in this federal
litigation, and they filed a second amended consolidated class action complaint on January 21, 2000.
Their second amended complaint realleges that the Company improperly used the “percentage-of-
completion” accounting method for revenue recognition. Claims are pleaded under both the 1933
Securities Act (relating to the Company’s initial public offering) and section 10b of the 1934
Securities Act. The complaint was brought on behalf of a purported class of investors who purchased
the Company’s Common Stock between February 13, 1997 and October 28, 1998, but it does not
allege specific damage amounts. A Motion to Dismiss the second amended consolidated class action
complaint was filed on February 22, 2000. On March 27, 2002, the Court granted the Motion but
extended to plaintiffs the opportunity to file a Third Amended Complaint. The plaintiffs filed their
Third Amended Complaint on May 16, 2002, to which the Company responded with another Motion
to Dismiss. The Motion was filed on June 24, 2002 and challenged the legal sufficiency of the
allegations. As noted above, on October 15, 2002, the Court granted that Motion, this time with
prejudice. On October 7, 1998 and October 15, 1998, two separate complaints were filed in the
Superior Court of San Diego County, California. These state court complaints mirror the allegations
set forth in the federal complaints. They also assert claims for common law fraud and the violation of
certain California statutes. As with their federal counterparts, they do not allege specific damage
amounts. On April 1, 1999, a Consolidated Amended Class Action was filed on behalf of the same
state court plaintiffs, and this new complaint alleges the same factual basis as is asserted in the
federal litigation. The state litigation pleads claims for fraud and violations of certain California
Corporation Code provisions. By stipulation of the parties and order of the court, this state court
litigation was stayed pending the outcome of the motion to dismiss the federal lawsuits as well as the
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resulting Appeal and Cross-Appeal. The Company believes that the allegations set forth in the federal
and state complaints are without merit, and the Company intends to defend against these lawsuits
vigorously. No assurance as to the outcome of this matter can be given, however, and an unfavorable
resolution of this matter could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, results of
operations, and'financial condition.

DICKSON V DAQU SYSTEMS, INC. ET AL

On February 27, 2002, a Complaint was filed against certain of the Company’s former officers
and directors as well as DAOU On-Line, Inc. in the Superior Court of New Jersey located in Bergen
County. A First Amended Complaint was filed on March 1, 2002, adding the Company and its
former Chief Financial Officer as parties-defendant. The gravaman of the First Amended Complaint
is two-fold. First, it alleges that the Company’s financial statements were misleading and
fraudulently induced the plaintiff to merge his company with the Company. Second, the First
Amended Complaint alleges breach of an indemnification and severance agreement obligating the
Company to defend the plaintiff in a lawsuit filed by Traci Melia, a former employee. Neither the
Complaint nor the First Amended Complaint alleges specific damage amounts.

The Company filed a Motion to Dismiss the First Amended Complaint on April 24, 2002. The
Court conducted a hearing on June 7, 2002 and granted the motion. On July 23, 2002, plaintiffs filed
a Notice of Appeal, but later abandoned their appeal in favor of refiling their lawsuit in San Diego
County Superior Court. The parties stipulated to a stay of this lawsuit and submission of the matter to
arbitration before the American Arbitration Association. The court approved that stipulation and
stayed all proceedings by order dated July 22, 2003. On October 6, 2003, plaintiffs filed a Statement
of Claim with the American Arbitration Association, the gravaman of which is the same as the
former complaint filed in Bergen County, New Jersey and San Diego County Superior Court. The
Statement of Claim alleges compensatory damages in the amount of $1,094,600 and also prays for
punitive damages as well as attorneys’ fees and costs. On December 3, 2003, the Company filed an
answer to the Statement of Claim, generally denying the allegations and alleging certain affirmative
defenses. All parties agreed to the appointment of Peter Shenas as the arbitrator. A preliminary
hearing was conducted on February 3, 2004, during which the parties agreed to the scope of written
and oral discovery and how the arbitration would proceed. Arbitration in this matter is currently set
to commence on July 12, 2004. The Company believes that the allegations set forth in the Statement
of Claim and its predecessor complaints are without merit, and the Company intends to defend
against the arbitration vigorously. No assurance as to the outcome of this matter can be given,
however, and an unfavorable resolution of this matter could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operations and financial condition.

The Company is party to other various claims and legal actions arising in the normal course of
business. Although the ultimate outcome of the matters is not presently determinable, management
believes that the resolution of all such pending matters, net of amounts accrued, will not have a
material adverse affect on the Company’s business, resuits of operations or financial condition;
however, there can be no assurance that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a
material impact on the Company’s results of operations in any period.

Item 4: Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matters were submitted to a vote of stockholders during the fourth quarter of 2003.
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PART I1

Item §:  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters, and Issuer
Purchases of Equity Securities.

Daou’s shares of common stock have traded on the Over the Counter Bulletin Board (OTCBB)
since April 25, 2001 under the symbol DAOU. The following table sets forth the high and low
closing bid information for the common stock. Bid quotations reflect inter-dealer prices without retail
mark-up or mark-down and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Common Stock

HIGH  LOW
2003
TSt QUArter ... ..ot e $0.425 $0.280
2nd Quarter . ... 0.810 0.330
B3rdQuarter ... ... e 0.930 0.720
4thQuarter ......oovi e 1.110  0.670
2002
ISt Quarter ...t e $1.500 $0.650
2nd QUArTEr ... e 1.560 00910
BrdQuarter . ... e 0930 0410
dthQuarter ... 0.525 0.260

On March 15, 2004, the closing bid and ask prices of the common stock were $0.62 and $0.68,
respectively. As of March 15, 2004, there were 141 holders of record of common stock.

Dividend Policy

In July 1999, we issued 2,181,818 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock to Galen
Partners and their affiliates for an aggregate amount of $12 million or $5.50 per share. Holders were
initially entitled to receive cumulative dividends at the rate of six percent per annum, generally
payable in the form of shares of Series A Preferred Stock until July 26, 2001. The dividend rate
increased to 7% on July 26, 2001, to 8% on July 26, 2002, to 9% on July 26, 2003, and will continue
to increase an additional 1% on July 26 of each year up to a maximum of 12%. As of December 31,
2003, Daou has accrued but undeclared preferred stock dividends of approximately $4.3 million. No
cash dividends may be paid on the common stock unless full dividends on the Series A Preferred
Stock for the then current dividend period have been either paid or declared with a sum sufficient for
the payment set apart. See Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations under the heading “Liquidity and Capital Resources” and Note 8 of the
notes to our audited financial statements as of December 31, 2003 for more information relating to
our preferred stock.

Daou has never declared nor paid cash dividends on the common stock. We currently intend to
retain any available earnings for future growth and, therefore, do not intend to pay any cash
dividends in the foreseeable future.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.

Issuer Purchases

On July 9, 2003, we repurchaéed, for fair value, 300,000 shares of our common stock in private
transactions with Daniel J. Malcolm, President and Chief Executive Officer and Neil Cassidy, former
Chief Financial Officer. We repurchased 150,000 shares from Mr. Malcolm for approximately
$94,000 and 150,000 shares from Mr. Cassidy for approximately $102,000 (for an aggregate cost to
Daou of approximately $196,000). In connection with the repurchases, Mr. Malcolm paid Daou
approximately $89,000 and Mr. Cassidy paid Daou approximately $50,000 (an aggregate amount of
approximately $139,000) for repayment of their respective promissory notes, including principal and
interest, relating to the original purchase of the shares in 2001. The related stock pledge and
registration rights agreements between each person and Daou were terminated.
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Item 6: Selected Financial Data.

The following table presents selected financial data and has been derived from our financial
statements, which have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors. The information
set forth below is not necessarily indicative of the results of future operations and should be read in
conjunction with the other sections of “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” in Item 7 of this report and the financial statements and the
related notes thereto included elsewhere herein (in thousands, except per share data):

Years ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
Revenue before reimbursements (net
TEVENUE) .t vir e et et e e $103,400 $ 63,748 $41,082 $37,935 $42,161
Cost of revenue before reimbursable
EXPEIISES « ¢ v ve e e e 82,030 58,700 30,964 26,128 28,760
Gross profit ......... ... ..., 21,370 5,048 10,118 11,807 13,401
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing .. ............... 10,398 5,715 3,309 4,807 4,550
General and administrative ........... 18,968 12,083 8,919 8,611 6,670
Restructuring (credits) charges ........ — 2,133 1,263 1,598 (252)
Total operating expenses ......... 29,366 19,931 13,491 15,016 10,968
Income (loss) from operations .. ........... (7,996) (14,883) (3,373) (3,209) 2,433
Otherincome,net....................... 779 699 421 270 207
Income (loss) before income taxes ......... (7,217) (14,184) (2,952) (2,939) 2,640
Provision for income taxes ............... (1,761) — — — (52)
Netincome (JOSS) .. ..o, (8,978) (14,184) (2,952) (2,939) 2,588
Dividends on preferred stock .. ............ (308) (4,837) (854) (1,054) (1,290)
Net income (loss) available to common
stockholders ......................... $ (9,286) $(19,021) $(3,806) $(3,993) $ 1,298
Net income (loss) available to common
stockholders per common share:
Basic ....... .. $ (052) 8 (1.07) $ (0.22) $ (0.21) $ 0.06
Diluted .............. ... ... ... .... $ 052) % (1.07) $ (0.22) $ (0.21) $ 0.05
Shares used in computing net income (loss)
per common share:
Basic ........ ... ... 17,697 17,712 17,682 19,075 20,821
Diluted ................coia. 17,697 17,712 17,682 19,075 26,513
Cash, cash equivalents, restricted cash and
short-term investments . ............... $ 15,548 $ 10,586 $15,074 $12,394 $13,147
Total @SSets . .o\ v iv e 46,060 26,832 24,384 24,640 25,228
Redeemable convertible preferred stock . . . .. 11,382 — — — —
Total stockholders’ equity ................ $ 24974 $ 20,360 $17,308 $14469 $17,045
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Item 7: Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.

This discussion contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. All
forward-looking statements are inherently uncertain as they are based on current expectations and
assumptions concerning future events or future performance of Daou Systems, Inc. You should not
place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which are only predictions and speak only
as of the date hereof. Forward-looking statements usually contain the word “estimate,” “anticipate,”
“hope”, “believe,” “think”, “expect,” “intend”, “plan” or similar expressions, and are subject to
numerous known and unknown risks and uncertainties. In evaluating such statements, you should
carefully review various risks and uncertainties identified in this report, including the matters set
forth under the captions “Risk Factors” and in Daou’s other SEC filings. These risks and
uncertainties could cause Daou’s actual results to differ materially from those indicated in the
forward-looking statements. We do not undertake any obligation to update or publicly announce
revisions to any forward-looking statements to reflect future events or developments.

Overview of the company

Daou provides integrated information technology (IT) solutions and services to the healthcare
industry in the United States. The Company is principally focused on providing IT services and
solutions to healthcare providers, payers and health plans and government healthcare. We design and
implement solutions to help healthcare organizations navigate the intersection of legacy systems with
emerging technologies, such as Web portals, wireless and other portable computing solutions. Our
services include application development and integration, application implementation and support,
network services, management consulting, business process redesign and best practices in help desk,
break/fix and desktop support.

Elimination of the DTC

We discontinued providing support center management services to hospitals and IDNs, with the
completion of the final contract in the first quarter of 2004. This decision included the closing of our
Indianapolis-based Daou Technology Center (DTC), which provided Help Desk and Desktop support
services on an outsourcing basis to two regional hospital providers: Indianapolis’ Community Health
Network (CHN) and St. Vincent Health,

The CHN contract ended on December 31, 2003 and the St. Vincent contract ended on February
25, 2004. The two contracts represented approximately $4.5 million or 11 percent of Daou’s total net
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2003. The decision is consistent with the Company’s
strategy to eliminate lower-margin services to enhance overall operating margins and consistently
achieve profitability. We were able to migrate 35 of the approximately 40 employees that were
dedicated to support center services to our former customers.

Overview of the IT industry and material trends impacting the Company’s results of
operations

In recent years, the healthcare industry has experienced a slow-down in consulting expenditures
as fiscal constraints imposed by federal, state and commercial payers reduced overall industry
demand for new IT service consulting projects. Some of these forces and others hampered demand
for certain of our services in 2003. Furthermore, changes in federal, state and commercial payer
reimbursement may continue to adversely affect the financial stability of our clients and may impact
their ability to contract for and pay for professional services such as those offered by Daou.

Our challenges in 2003 were a direct result of the softness in the demand for financial and
administrative software solutions in the payer market. Our revenue from new implementations and
post implementation support declined in each quarter of 2003, and we expect this trend to continue in
2004. We believe that the downward shift was caused by at least three factors: 1) the consolidation of
the commercial payer market, 2) the increasing demand for commercial payers to reduce
administrative costs, and 3) the completion of most major claims systems implementations in our
market sector.
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IDNs and hospital systems remained our focus in the provider market. Modern Healthcare
reported in their February 2003 issue that 86% of hospital IT budgets are less than 4% of their total
operating budget, with the majority spending in the range of 1% to 2.5%. At our November 2003
advisory board meeting, participants reported that they spend approximately 80% of their IT budgets
on maintaining existing systems. This concentration of spending on existing systems benefits our
market position resulting in our infrastructure service line business remaining stable, and our revenue
base continuing to be supported by smaller projects that are relatively shorter in duration (six months
or less).

Our government and integration service revenue had been steadily increasing since the fourth
quarter of 2001. However, in the fourth quarter of 2003, there was a delay in congressional approval
of the FY 2004 Consolidated Appropriations Bill (Omnibus) to January 2004, which contained
funding for a number of civilian agencies including the Veterans Administration and Health and
Human Services. This event forced the deferral of certain government projects until first quarter
2004, and resulted in a decline in our revenue and gross margin as a result of carrying underutilized
professional staff. We anticipate the congressional approval of the FY 2004 Consolidated
Appropriations Bill (Omnibus) will result in a recovery by the second quarter of 2004.

With the DTC closure and reduced demand for our professional services in the fourth quarter
2003 and first quarter 2004, and the resulting realignment of overhead personnel, we plan to further
reduce our overall workforce to an aggregate of approximately 150 people by March 31, 2004.

Key indicators of our financial condition and operating performance

Utilization of our professional staff, which is the ratio of total billable hours to available hours
in a given period, and our ability to manage fixed price contracts, are our greatest challenges. We
employed 154 billable professionals on December 31, 2003. The salaries and benefits of this staff are
recognized in our cost of revenue before reimbursable expenses. Most non-billable employee salaries
and benefits are recognized as a component of either selling or general and administrative expenses.
While quarterly revenues declined during the year, we worked to balance maintaining enough
experienced professionals ready to be deployed when the business opportunities were presented,
while striving to protect our gross margin. We target an overall utilization rate of 80% for our
business. In 2003, we experienced a utilization rate of §3%.

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) overhead expenses in 2003 were 27% of net
revenue. We continue to reduce our general and administrative expenses by managing those costs
that are mostly controllable such as facilities, [T and operating systems. Daou made key investments
in marketing and sales in 2003. We operated six CIO Forums across the United States to help
establish long-term relationships with our customers. Additionally, we sponsored three Advisory
Board programs and enlisted the knowledge and insight of our CIO members from both healthcare
provider and payer organizations. We are dependant on maintaining a solid reputation in the
marketplace, personal contacts and the networking of our professionals to develop new business
opportunities. We receive valuable feedback from customers, the Advisory Boards, CIO Forums, and
other trusted advisors.

Characteristics of our revenue and expenses

We generate substantially all of our revenue from professional services, primarily on a “time
and expense” project basis, under which revenue is recognized as the services are performed. Billings
for these services occur on a semi-monthly or monthly basis as specified by the contract with a
particular customer. Qur billing rates are commensurate with the healthcare-domain IT expertise,
know-how and skills of our people. Our time and expense projects generally range from three to six
months, although certain projects have been for periods in excess of a year. Our network system and
payer application system implementation engagements typically average six months but may vary
depending on the size and complexity of the project. We also provided support, management and
help desk services in 2003 in which revenue is recognized ratably over the period that these services
are provided. Our help desk services as described above are billed on a price per call or price per
node basis.

20




We continue to provide some of our professional services. on a fixed-fee basis. Revenue on
fixed-fee contracts is recognized related to the level of service performed based upon the amount of
labor cost incurred on the project versus the total labor costs to complete the project. Our gross
margin with respect to fixed fee contracts varies significantly depending on the percentage of such
services consisting of the resale of third-party products (with respect to which we obtain a lower
margin) versus professional services.

We bill our customers for out-of-pocket expenses, primarily travel and related expenses incurred
with respect to services provided to customers, and have adopted the provisions of the Emerging
Issues Task Force (“EITEF”) Topic D-103, Income Statement Characterization of Reimbursements for
“Out-of-Pocket” Expenses Incurred, issued in November 2001. EITF Topic D-103 states that
reimbursements received for out-of-pocket expenses should be characterized as revenue on the
income statement. The application of EITF Topic D-103 does not have an impact on current or
previously reported net income (loss) or net income (loss) per share. We will continue to use net
revenue (revenue before reimbursements) and cost of revenue before reimbursable expenses to
compute percentage and margin calculations, as well as for purposes of comparing the results of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2003 to the year ended December 31, 2002 and the year
ended December 31, 2002 to the year ended December 31, 2001.

Payments received in advance of services performed are recorded as deferred revenue. Certain
contract payment terms may result in customer billing occurring at a pace slower than revenue
recognition. The resulting revenue recognized in excess of amounts billed and project cost is
included in contract work in progress on our balance sheet.

Cost of revenue primarily consists of all expenses that are directly attributable to our service
lines and include the salaries, bonuses and related benefits of our consultants as well as non-billable
managers and support staff, subcontractor expenses, training costs and unit-specific office space
costs. Our consultant-related costs are relatively fixed; therefore, fluctuations in our gross margin
may occur due to changes in project margins and utilization rates of our professional staff. We often
continue to employ non-engaged employees in anticipation of commencement of a project. If delays
in contract signing occur or projects do not materialize, our gross margin could vary due to the
associated loss of revenue to cover fixed labor costs.

Sales and marketing expenses primarily consist of the salaries, benefits, travel and other costs of
our sales and marketing teams, as well as marketing initiatives and business development expenses.
General and administrative expenses primarily consist of the costs attributable to the support of our
consultants, such as: investments in information systems, salaries, expenses and office space costs for
executive management, financial accounting, purchasing, administrative and human resources
personnel, recruiting fees, fegal and other professional services.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the years indicated, certain statement of operations data as a
percentage of net revenue.

Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Revenue before reimbursements (netrevenue) ....................... 100% 100% 100%
Cost of revenue before reimbursable expenses . . ...................... 68 69 75
Gross Profit . ... 32 31 25
Sales and marketing Xpense .. ..........i i 11 13 8
General and administrative eXpense .. ...t e 16 23 22
Restructuring charges (credit) .. .. ... i e ﬁ ) __ﬁ ___3_
Income (loss) from Operations ... .........c...iiiininineininnnenn. 9) &)
Other InCOMe, NEE . . . .ot e e 1 1
Income (loss) before income taxes ...t ) )

% (8% (%

6

6
Provision forincome taxes .............oi it — — —
Netincome (JOSS) ..o vttt e 6




Years Ended December 31, 2003 and 2002

Qur net revenue increased 11%, or $4.2 million, to $42.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2003 from $37.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. This increase was primarily due
to a $3.5 million increase in revenue related to the hardware component of two large network
upgrade projects delivered by our infrastructure services team in 2003. One of these projects was
completed during 2003, and the second project is expected to be completed by March 31, 2004. In
addition, revenue from government healthcare integration services increased $1.7 million from 2002
to 2003, as a result of enhanced relationships with government agencies and new prime government
contractors. The increase in revenue was offset by a decrease in revenue from application services,
primarily due to a decrease in revenue from new implementations and post implementation support
as mentioned above.

Services to our five largest customers accounted for $17.4 million of net revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2003, representing 41% of total net revenue, with no one customer accounting
for more than 10% of net revenue. This compares to net revenue from the five largest customers for
the year ended December 31, 2002 totaling $12.3 million, or 32% of net revenue.

Cost of revenue before reimbursable expenses increased 10%, or $2.6 million, to $28.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2003 from $26.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2002.
The increase was the result of the increase in revenue and the associated direct costs related to the
hardware component of network upgrade projects.

Gross margin increased to 32% for the year ended December 31, 2003 as compared to 31% for
the year ended December 31, 2002, This increase is attributable primarily to better utilization and
cost control throughout our business, but primarily in our government and integration and
infrastructure service lines.

Sales and marketing expenses decreased 5%, or $300,000, to $4.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2003 as compared to $4.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, primarily
due to strong budget management and the efficient execution by our marketing team to deliver
consistency in our CIO Forums, advertising, and public relations, resulting in stronger loyalties by
existing customers and strengthening of our brand recognition.

General and administrative expenses decreased $1.9 million, or 22%, to $6.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2003 as compared to $8.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002,
reflecting an improving management of administrative overhead as well as savings in employee-
related and facilities costs as a result of previously disclosed actions taken in December 2002.

In the third quarter of 2003, we were able to reduce our obligations relating to unused office
space resulting in the reversal of $252,000 of previously accrued restructuring charges. The amount
has been recorded as a restructuring credit in the statement of operations as the original provision was
recorded as a restructuring expense in the period in which the charge was recorded.

Other income, net, decreased 23%, or $100,000 to $200,000 for the year ended December 31,
2003 as compared to $300,000 for the year ended December 31, 2002. Other income is comprised
primarily of interest income on cash and cash equivalents, and investments.

We have a history of losses, which, for income tax purposes, generated sizeable federal and state
tax net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards, at December 31, 2003, of approximately $27.0 million
and approximately $8.2 million, respectively. The federal loss carryforwards expire beginning 2018
through 2022, and the state loss carryforwards expire from 2004 through 2022, unless previously
utilized. Pursuant to generally accepted accounting principles, we previously recorded a valuation
allowance against the deferred tax asset associated with these NOL carryforwards as it is more likely
than not that we will not be able to utilize the NOL carryforwards to offset future taxes. Due to the
size of the NOL carryforwards in relation to our history of unprofitable operations, we have not
recognized any of this net deferred tax asset. It is possible that we could be profitable in the future at
levels which would cause us to conclude that it is more likely than not that we will be able to realize
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all or a portion of the NOL carryforwards. Upon reaching such a conclusion, we would record the
estimated net realizable value of the deferred tax asset at that time and would then begin to provide
for income taxes at a rate equal to our combined federal and state effective rates, which we believe
would approximate 40%. Subsequent revisions to the estimated net realizable value of the deferred
tax asset could cause our provision for income taxes to vary significantly from period to period.

Under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, the annual use of our net operating loss
carryforwards may be limited in the event of a cumulative change in ownership of more that 50%.
However, we currently do not believe such a limitation will have a material impact on the ultimate
utilization of these carryforwards.

The income tax provision of $52,000 recorded in 2003 is comprised of current federal
alternative minimum taxes of $36,000 and current state income taxes of $16,000.

Years Ended December 31, 2002 and 2001

Our net revenue decreased 8%, or $3.2 million, to $37.9 million for the year ended December
31, 2002 from $41.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. This decrease is a combination
of a $5.0 million increase in managed care implementation revenue, offset by a $4.0 million decrease
in revenue associated with the termination of a large outsourcing contract and the elimination of
unprofitable lines of business in 2001, a $2.2 million decrease in revenue due to the downsizing of
our temporary staffing business, a $2.0 million decrease in revenue associated with long-term
contracts expiring in 2001 that were not renewed and a reduction in infrastructure services revenue.
Revenue from third-party equipment sales remained relatively flat at $1.0 million in 2002 and 2001.

Services to our five largest customers accounted for $12.3 million of net revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2002, representing 32% of total net revenue, with one help desk outsourcing
customer accounting for 9.2% of net revenue. This compares to net revenue from the five largest
customers for the year ended December 31, 2001 totaling $13.5 million, or 33% of net revenue.

Cost of revenue before reimbursable expenses decreased 16%, or $4.9 million, to $26.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2002 from $31.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2001
primarily due to the 8% decrease in net revenue as well as our efforts to eliminate under-performing
lines of businesses and a reduction of costs and more effective management of our workforce, offset
by higher costs in our managed care implementation business associated with the higher revenue
attainment in that business.

Gross margin increased to 31% for the year ended December 31, 2002 as compared to 25% for
the year ended December 31, 2001. This increase is attributable primarily to the above-referenced
exit from certain lines of business that were not profitable or had low margins as well as disciplined
management procedures and controls resulting in increased operating efficiencies and billable
utilization of our workforce.

Sales and marketing expenses increased 45%, or $1.5 million, to $4.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2002 as compared to $3.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, primarily
due to our efforts to re-establish market presence in 2002 following a period of limited activity as we
focused internally to restructure and gain operating efficiencies. Sales and marketing expenses were
13% and 8% of net revenue for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively. We
expect sales and marketing expenses to increase in 2003 as we continue to invest in strategic business
development initiatives in an effort to increase revenue.

General and administrative expenses decreased $300,000, or 3%, to $8.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002 as compared to $8.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2001,
reflecting our efforts in improving administrative operating performance and the centralization of
accounting, human resources, and IT functions at the corporate level. General and administrative
expenses were 23% and 22% of net revenue for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.
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We recorded a restructuring charge for the year ended December 31, 2002 totaling $1.6 million
primarily related to our decision to reorganize our internal management structure, consolidate
operations and eliminate non-strategic services as part of our strategy to position Daou for continued
growth in the marketplace. The restructuring charge includes $1.1 million in severance costs and
$500,000 related to the closure and combination of certain facilities.

Other income, net, decreased 36%, or $100,000 to $300,000 for the year ended December 31,
2002 as compared to $400,000 for the year ended December 31, 2001. Other income is comprised
primarily of interest income on cash and cash equivalents, and investments.

The effective income tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 was 0%. We did
not record an income tax benefit on the operating loss as realization is not certain.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

On December 31, 2003, we had working capital of $15.8 million, an increase of $2.9 million
from $12.9 million on December 31, 2002. The increase was primarily attributable to the reduction in
2003 of current liabilities, primarily restructuring liabilities and accrued project costs.
Notwithstanding' the reduction in approximately $2.5 million in current liabilities, we were able to
increase our cash position by $700,000 during the year from $12.3 million at December 31, 2002 to
$13.0 million at December 31, 2003.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, cash provided by operating activities was $1.1 million,
compared to net cash used in operating activities of $1.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2002. The change was primarily the result of net income for 2003 as well as an increase in deferred
revenue, offset by a reduction in current liabilities.

Net cash used in investing activities was $371,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003,
compared to $1.2 million in the comparable prior period. The decrease was primarily due to a
reduction in spending relating to fixed assets in 2003.

Net cash used in financing activities was $49,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003,
compared to cash provided by financing activities of $84,000 in the comparable prior year period.

As previously disclosed, in July 1999 we issued 2,181,818 shares of Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock to Galen Partners and their affiliates for an aggregate amount of $12 million or $5.50
per share. Holders were initially entitled to receive cumulative dividends-at the rate of six percent per
annum, generally payable in the form of shares of Series A Preferred Stock until July 26, 2001. The
dividend rate increased to 7% on July 26, 2001, to 8% on July 26, 2002, to 9% on July 26, 2003, and
will continue to increase an additional 1% on July 26 of each year up to a maximum of 12%. No cash
dividends may be paid on the common stock unless full dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock for
the then current dividend period have been either paid or declared with a sum sufficient for the
payment set apart.

The holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock vote on an as converted to common
stock basis with the holders of common stock. The Series A Preferred stockholders also have a
liquidation preference of $5.50 per Series A share, plus any accrued but unpaid dividends. At the
option of the holders, shares of the Series A Preferred Stock can be converted into shares of common
stock at any time, subject to certain antidilution adjustments. We are required to make a best efforts
attempt to secure one Board of Director seat for a representative of the holders of Series A Preferred
Stock. The holders of Series A Preferred Stock also obtained certain redemption rights as part of the
original financing transaction in July 1999. They have since permanently waived those rights as
described below.

As of December 31, 2003, Daou had accrued but undeclared preferred stock dividends of
approximately $4.3 million (payable in kind by the issuance of approximately 774,000 shares of
Series A Preferred Stock), thereby entitling the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock to a total
liquidation preference of approximately $16.3 million.

On November 9, 2000, as a consequence of the resignation of Larry Grandia, Daou’s former
President and Chief Executive Officer, holders of the Series A Preferred Stock had the right to cause
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the redemption of their Series A Preferred Stock for approximately $12.9 million. We entered into an
agreement with the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock under which the holders of the Series A
Preferred Stock permanently waived their redemption rights in return for $2.0 million in cash and
warrants to purchase 3,540,000 shares of our common stock exercisable at $0.01 per share. The
warrants expire on November 9, 2005, and the common stock for which the warrants may be
exercised is subject to demand registration rights. The total consideration for this transaction was
valued at approximately $4.1 million and for financial reporting purposes was recorded as a one-time
dividend in the fourth quarter of 2000.

As of December 31, 2003, Daou’s contractual obligations were as follows:

Payments due by period
Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 Years 3-5 years S years
Operating lease obligations . . . ... $4,166,000 $1,322,000 $1,446,000 $1,214,000 $184,000

Although we have an accumulated deficit as of December 31, 2003, we believe that our
available funds will be sufficient to meet our capital requirements for the foreseeable future. We may
sell additional equity or debt securities or obtain credit facilities. The sale of additional equity
securities or issuance of equity securities in future acquisitions would result in dilution to our
stockholders and the incurrence of debt could result in interest expense. However, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to sell additional equity or debt securities, or be able to obtain
financing on acceptable terms, if at all. See “Risk Factors—Future sales of our common stock could
adversely affect the price of the common stock and our ability to raise additional equity capital.”

Off Balance Sheet Financial Arrangements

The Company is not party to any off balance sheet financial arrangements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon
our financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States. The preparation of these financial statements requires
management to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses, and related disclosures. On an on-going basis, we evaluate these estimates,
including those related to revenue recognition, long-lived assets, accrued liabilities, stock-based
compensation, and income taxes. Estimates are based on historical experience, information received
from third parties and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect the significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) No. 104, Revenue
Recognition. SAB 104 requires that the following criteria be met in determining whether revenue has
been earned:

e persuasive evidence of an arrangement,

* services have been delivered,

¢ price is fixed and determinable, and

o collectibility is reasonably assured.

We have the following types of revenue recognition: 1) services performed on an hourly basis,
11) services performed on a fixed fee basis and iii) sales of material and maintenance contracts. In

general, we enter into contracts with customers to provide services at a specified fee or rate per hour.
Revenue from professional services is recognized primarily on an hourly basis. Revenue from
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technical support, network management and help desk services is recognized as the services are
performed. Contract revenue for the development and implementation of network solutions under
fixed-fee contracts recognized related to the level of service performed based upon the amount of
labor cost incurred on the project versus the total labor costs to complete the project. Provisions for
estimated losses on contracts, if any, are made during the period when the loss becomes probable and
can be reasonably estimated. Revenue recognized in excess of amounts billed and project costs are
classified as contract work in progress. Payments received in advance of services performed are
recorded as deferred revenue and amortized as the services are performed.

Bad Debt

We are required to estimate the collectibility of our trade accounts receivable. We perform this
analysis on a specific customer identification basis. A considerable amount of judgment is required in
assessing the ultimate realization of these receivables, including the credit worthiness of each
customer and the age of the customer balances. We estimate the amount to reserve for a specific
customer by taking into account the age of the receivables and the payment history of the customer.
Significant changes in required reserves have been recorded in recent periods and may occur in the
future due to the current market environment and changes in client payment history.

Litigation

We are currently involved in legal proceedings regarding shareholder litigation and other
general legal proceedings. As discussed in Note 11 of our financial statements, we believe that the
lawsuits are without merit and intend to defend against them vigorously. Although the ultimate
outcome of these matters is not presently determinable management believes that the resolution of all
such pending matters, net of amounts accrued will not have a material adverse effect in our financial
position. It is poessible, however, that future results of operations for any particular quarterly or
annual period could be materially affected by changes in our assumptions, or the effectiveness of our
strategies, related to these proceedings.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In June 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 146,
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” SFAS No. 146 provides
guidance related to accounting for costs associated with disposal activities covered by SFAS No. 144
or with exit or restructuring activities previously covered by EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability
Recognition for -Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity
(including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 supercedes EITF Issue
No. 94-3 in its entirety. SFAS No. 146 requires that costs related to exiting an activity or to a
restructuring not be recognized until the liability is incurred. SFAS No. 146 will be applied
prospectively to exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of
this method did not have a material impact on Daou’s results of operations or financial condition.

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”), “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB 51.” The primary objectives of this interpretation are to
provide guidance on the identification of entities for which control is achieved through means other
than through voting rights (“variable interest entities”) and how to determine when and which
business enterprise (the “primary beneficiary”) should consolidate the variable interest entity. This
new mode] for consolidation applies to an entity in which either (i) the equity investors (if any) do
not have a controlling financial interest; or (ii) the equity investment at risk is insufficient to finance
that entity’s activities without receiving additional subordinated financial support from other parties.
In addition, FIN 46 requires that the primary beneficiary, as well as all other enterprises with a
significant variable interest in a variable interest entity, make additional disclosures., Certain
disclosure requirements of FIN 46 were effective for financial statements issued after January 31,
2003. In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46 (revised December 2003), “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46-R”) to address certain FIN 46 implementation issues. The
effective dates and impact of FIN 46 and FIN 46-R are as follows: (i) Special-purpose entities
(“SPEs”) created prior to February 1, 2003. The company must apply either the provisions of FIN 46
or early adopt the provisions of FIN 46-R at the end of the first interim or annual reporting period
ending after December 15, 2003. (ii) Non-SPEs created prior to February 1, 2003. The company is
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required to adopt FIN 46-R at the end of the first interim or annual reporting period ending after
March 15, 2004. (iii) All entities, regardless of whether an SPE, that were created subsequent to
January 31, 2003. The provisions of FIN 46 were applicable for variable interests in entities obtained
after January 31, 2003. The adoption of the provisions applicable to SPEs and all other variable
interests obtained after January 31, 2003 did not have a material impact on Daou’s financial
condition, results of operations, or liquidity. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting FIN
46-R applicable to Non-SPEs created prior to February 1, 2003 but we do not expect a material
impact.

Effective July 1, 2003, we adopted the FASB’s consensus on EITF Issue No. 00-21,
“Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” This issue addresses how to
account for arrangements that may involve the delivery or performance of multiple products,
services, and/or rights to use assets. The final consensus of this issue is applicable to agreements
entered into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003. Adoption of this issue had no material
impact on Daou’s financial condition, results of operations, or liquidity.

In December 2003, the SEC issued SAB 104, which supercedes SAB No. 101, “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements” (“SAB 101”). The primary purpose of SAB 104 is to rescind
accounting guidance contained in SAB 101 related to multiple element revenue arrangements,
superceded as a result of the issuance of Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 00-21.
Additionally, SAB 104 rescinds the SEC’s “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements Frequently
Asked Questions and Answers” (“the FAQ”) issued with SAB 101 that had been codified in SEC
Topic 13, “Revenue Recognition”. Selected portions of the FAQ have been incorporated into SAB
104. The adoption of SAB 104 did not have an impact on our financial condition or results of
operations.

Item 7A: Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risks.

We invest excess cash primarily in U.S. government securities and marketable debt securities of
financial institutions and corporations with strong credit ratings. These instruments have maturities of
three months or less when acquired. We do not utilize derivative financial instruments, derivative
commodity instruments or other market risk sensitive instruments, positions or transactions in any
material fashion. Accordingly, we believe that, while the instruments held are subject to changes in
the financial standing of the issuer of such securities, we are not subject to any material risks arising
from changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchanges rates, commodity prices, equity prices or
other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Daou Systems, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Daou Systems, Inc. as of December 31,
2003 and 2002, and the related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003. Our audits also included the financial
statement schedule listed in the index to the financial statements. These financial statements and
schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

‘We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Daou Systems, Inc. at December 31, 2003 and 2002 and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion,
the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 6, 2004
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Daou Systems, Inc.
Balance Sheets
(In thousands, except for per share data)

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cashandcashequivalents . ...... ... .. ... . i i,
Investments, available-for-sale ............ ... ... . . . . .. .. .. ...
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $789 and

$732 in 2003 and 2002, respectively ... ...t
Contract Work In PrOgress . . ... ov oo it
Other CUITENE @SSELS . . v\ v ittt e it ettt et iciaa i earaennes

Total CUITENt @SSELS . ... o ittt e et et e e
Due from officers/stockholders . ... ... .. ... ... . . . ..
Equipment, furniture and fixtures,net ............. .. .. .. .. ...
O her A8S8ES .. o it i e e e e e

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Trade accounts payable ... ... ... ... . . i
Accrued salaries and benefits ............. ... .. ... i i
Accrued ProjJect COSES . .. v vttt it e e e
Other accrued liabilities . ... ... .. .. i i
Deferredrevenue . ........ i

Total current liabilities . ... ... .ttt e e
Deferred rent, net of current POrtion . .......couueiiiiiii i,
Other long-term liabilities . ......... ... ...
Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:

Convertible preferred stock, $ .001 par value. Authorized 3,520 shares;
issued and outstanding 2,182 shares, with a liquidation preference of
$16,256 and $14,966, respectively, at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
including acecrued dividends ... ... ... . . L L i il

Common stock, $ .001 par value. Authorized 50,000 shares; issued and
outstanding 21,583 and 21,737 at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively and 1,292 and 992 shares held in treasury at December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively . ...

Additional paid-in capital ......... ... ... oo

Notes receivable from stockholders ......... ... ... ... .. .. . ...

Accumulated other comprehensive loss ........... .. .. ... ... ...

Accumulated deficit . ... ... ... . e

Total stockholders” equity . ..........ciiiii i

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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December 31,
2003 2002

$ 13,045 $12,319
102 75

8,226 7,922
1,457 2,147

640 554
23,470 23,017
83 54
1,144 1,006
531 563

$ 25228 § 24,640

$ 83 s 705
4,063 4,328

68 1,968
1,280 2,765
1,426 365

7,660 10,131

34 40
2 2
22 22

55,936 54,806
(1,160)  (1,281)
(29 (56)
(37,726) (39,024)

17,045 14,469
$ 25,228 $ 24,640




Daou Systems, Inc.
Statements of Operations
(In thousands, except for per share data)

2003 2002 2001
Revenue before reimbursements (netrevenue) . ..............oo... $42,161 $37,935 $41,082
Qut-of-pocket reimbursements .. ............couiunnannein..n. 3,265 3,240 3,161
Total TEVENUE . . .. ot e e 45,426 41,175 44,243
Cost of revenue before reimbursable expenses .. ................. 28,760 26,128 30,964
Out-of-pocket reimbursable expenses . . . ..., 3,265 3,240 3,161
Total costofrevenue . .......... i 32,025 29,368 34,125
Gross profit .. ... 13,401 11,807 10,118
Operating expenses:
Salesand marketing ........... .. .. ... i 4,550 4,807 3,309
General and admuinistrative . ....... ... .. . . 6,670 8,611 8,919
Restructuring (credit) charges . .......... .. ... .. .. ... (252) 1,598 1,263
10,968 15,016 13,491
Income (10ss) from OPerations ... ..........couvuvennnuninnnnns 2,433 (3,209) (3,373)
Other INCOME, NEL . . .\t vttt e e et e s e e eee s 207 270 421
Income (loss) before income taxes . .........coviiiiinnn... 2,640  (2,939) (2,952)
Provision forincome taxes . ........... vt (52) — —
Netincome (J0SS) .. vttt e e 2,588  (2,939) (2,952)
Accrued dividends on preferred stock . ........ .. o (1,290) (1,054) (854)
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders ............. $ 1,298 $(3,993) $(3,806)
Eamings (loss) per common share: :
BaSIC .t $ 006 $ (021) $ (0.22)
Diluted .. ... e $ 005 % (0.21) $ (0.22)
Shares used in computing earnings (loss) per common share
Basic ... 20,821 19,075 17,682
Diluted . ... 26,513 19,075 17,682

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Daou Systems, Inc.

Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)
Years ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Netincome (10SS) ..ot e $ 2,588 $(2,939) $(2,952)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization . ..................c..o.. .. 665 959 1,334
Amortization of deferred compensation .................... 113 108 60
Provision for uncollectible accounts . ...................... (57) 186 232
Issuance of common stock and options for services ... ........ 10 — 36
(Gain) loss on retirement of fixed assets . . .................. — (10) 362
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable ........ ... .. ... i, 247 (536) 4,096
Contract work in progress . ... .ovvvn e i e 690 131 750
Other CUITent @sSets . ..ottt ie et et eenenns (132) (79) 83
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ............... (3,267) 259 (405)
Accrued salaries and benefits ............... ... ..., (265) 753 981
Deferredrevenue . .. ... ... . 1,061 (220) 188
Other long-term liabilities . .. ... ........... ... ... .... (13) an (62)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities ............... 1,146 (1,399) 4,703
Investing activities
Purchase of equipment, furniture and fixtures ................... (342) (900) 259)
(Increase) decrease in otherassets ..................c0.vivnnn. 29 (334) 33
Net cash used in investing activities .. ........... ... vvn.... (371) (1,234) (226)
Financing Activities .
Proceeds from issuance of common stock ...................... 26 84 85
Repurchase of restricted stock, net of notes receivable ............ (75) — —
Purchase of treasury stock ... ... oL oo — — (198)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities ............... (49) 84 (113)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . ................ 726 (2,549) 4,364
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year .. ................ 12,319 14,868 10,504
Cash and cash equivalents atendof year ....................... $13,045 $12,319 $14,868

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Daou Systems, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
(In thousands)

Supplemental disclosure of noncash investing and financing activities:
Accrued preferred stock dividends to preferred stockholders . ... ..

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments ........................
Property and equipment acquired through tenant allowance .......
Income taxespaid ............ ... ... .. e e
Issuance of common stock and options for services ..............

Issuance of restricted common stock in exchange for notes
receivable . ... ... L L

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Years ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
$1,290 $1,054 $ 854
$ 27§ 16 § (23)
$ 461 $ — § —
$ 178 — § —
$§ — § — § 36
$§ — § — §1281




Daou Systems, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and Basis of Presentation

Daou Systems, Inc. (“Daou” or the “Company”), a Delaware company, was incorporated in
California on July 16, 1987 under the name Daou Systems, Inc., and reincorporated in Delaware on
November 15, 1996. The Company provides expert consulting and management services to
healthcare organizations in the design, deployment and support of IT infrastructure and application
systems. Daou offers a range of comprehensive services, from mobile health and web services
strategies to application implementation and support; from government and commercial integration
services to best practices in help desk, break/fix and desktop support. Daou has provided services to
more than 1,600 healthcare organizations, including leading private and public hospitals, managed
care organizations on both the payer and provider sides of the market, as well as integrated healthcare
delivery networks (IDNs) and some of the nation’s largest government healthcare entities. Daou
Systems, Inc. is a publicly traded company listed on the OTC Bulletin Board under the stock symbol
DAOU.

On January 9, 2003, the Company announced its decision to reorganize Daou’s internal
management structure, consolidate operations and eliminate non-strategic services. As part of the
reorganization, the Company consolidated Daou’s two operating divisions—Technology Services
and Application Services, and plan to operate as one business unit. As such, the Company currently
has no reportable segments.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with Staff Accounting Bulletin (*SAB”)
No. 104, Revenue Recognition. SAB 104 requires that the following criteria be met in determining
whether revenue has been earned:

» persuasive evidence of an arrangement,
* services have been delivered,
+ price is fixed and determinable, and

» collectibility is reasonably assured.

The Company has the following types of revenue recognition: 1) services performed on an
hourly basis, 2) services performed on a fixed fee basis and 3) sales of material and maintenance
contracts. In general, the Company enters into contracts with customers to provide services at a
specified fee or rate per hour.

Revenue from professional services is recognized primarily on an hourly basis. Revenue from
technical support, network management and help desk services is recognized as the services are
performed. Contract revenue for the development and implementation of network solutions under
fixed-fee contracts is recognized related to the level of service performed based upon the amount of
labor cost incurred on the project versus the total labor costs to complete the project. Provisions for
estimated losses on contracts, if any, are made during the period when the loss becomes probable and
can be reasonably estimated. Revenue recognized in excess of amounts billed and project costs is
classified as contract work in progress. Payments received in advance of services performed are
recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as the services are performed.

Concentration of Credit Risk and Major Customers

Financial instruments which subject the Company to potential concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of the Company’s accounts receivable. Substantially all of the Company’s
accounts receivable are from managed care organizations, hospitals, government healthcare
organizations and other healthcare providers. The Company performs credit evaluations of its new
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Daou Systems, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements—(Continued)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—(Continued)

customers and generally requires no collateral. The Company provides for losses from uncollectible
accounts pursuant to a formal policy which is based on analyzing historical data and trends and such
losses have historically not exceeded management’s expectations. Past due or delinquency status is
based on contractual terms. Past due amounts are written off against the allowance for doubtful
accounts when collection is deemed unlikely and all collection efforts have ceased.

Services to Daou’s five largest customers accounted for approximately $17.4 million of net
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2003, representing approximately 41% of total net revenue,
with no one customer accounting for more than 10% of net revenue.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and highly liquid investments with maturities of three
months or less when purchased. The Company has established guidelines relative to diversification
and maturities that are periodically reviewed and modified to take advantage of trends in yields and
interest rates. The Company historically has not experienced any material losses on its cash
equivalents or short-term investments.

The Company classifies its investments as “Available-for-Sale” and records such assets at the
estimated fair value on the balance sheet with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings
-and reported as a separate component of comprehensive income until realized. The basis for
computing realized gains or losses is by specific identification.

At December 31, 2003, the Company has approximately $390,000 of cash related to operating
leases in an escrow account subject to certain withdrawal restrictions. This amount is classified in
other assets on the balance sheet.

Equipment, Furniture and Fixtures

Equipment, furniture and fixtures are carried at cost. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging from two to five years.
Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the estimated useful lives of the assets or
the remaining lease term.

Advertising Expense

Advertising expenditures are charged to expense as incurred. The Company expensed $260,000,
$222,000 and $14,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Recent Pronouncements

In June 2002, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 146,
“Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.” SFAS No. 146 provides
guidance related to accounting for costs associated with disposal activities covered by SFAS No. 144
or with exit or restructuring activities previously covered by EITF Issue No. 94-3, “Liability
Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity
(including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring).” SFAS No. 146 supercedes EITF Issue
No. 94-3 in its entirety. SFAS No. 146 requires that costs related to exiting an activity or to a
restructuring not be recognized until the liability is incurred. SFAS No. 146 will be applied
prospectively to exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002. The adoption of
this method did not have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial
condition.
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Daou Systems, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements—(Continued)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—(Continued)

In January 2003, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 46 (“FIN 46”), “Consolidation of Variable
Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB 51.” The primary objectives of this interpretation are to
provide guidance on the identification of entities for which control is achieved through means other
than through voting rights (“variable interest entities”) and how to determine when and which
business enterprise (the “primary beneficiary”) should consolidate the variable interest entity. This
new model for consolidation applies to an entity in which either (i) the equity investors (if any) do
not have a controlling financial interest; or (ii) the equity investment at risk is insufficient to finance
that entity’s activities without receiving additional subordinated financial support from other parties.
In addition, FIN 46 requires that the primary beneficiary, as well as all other enterprises with a
significant variable interest in a variable interest entity, make additional disclosures. Certain
disclosure requirements of FIN 46 were effective for financial statements issued after January 31,
2003, In December 2003, the FASB issued FIN 46 (revised December 2003), “Consolidation of
Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46-R”) to address certain FIN 46 implementation issues. The
effective dates and impact of FIN 46 and FIN 46-R are as follows: (i) Special-purpose entities
(“SPEs”) created prior to February 1, 2003. The company must apply either the provisions of FIN 46
or early adopt the provisions of FIN 46-R at the end of the first interim or annual reporting period
ending after December 15, 2003. (ii) Non-SPEs created prior to February 1, 2003. The company is
required to adopt FIN 46-R at the end of the first interim or annual reporting period ending after
March 15, 2004. (iii) All entities, regardless of whether an SPE, that were created subsequent to
Tanuary 31, 2003. The provisions of FIN 46 were applicable for variable interests in entities obtained
after January 31, 2003. The adoption of the provisions applicable to SPEs and all other variable
interests obtained after January 31, 2003 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
condition, results of operations, or liquidity. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of
adopting FIN 46-R applicable to Non-SPEs created prior to February 1, 2003 but does not expect a
material impact.

Effective July 1, 2003, the company adopted the FASB’s consensus on EITF Issue No. 00-21,
“Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.” This issue addresses how to
account for arrangements that may involve the delivery or performance of multiple products,
services, and/or rights to use assets. The final consensus of this issue is applicable to agreements
entered into in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2003. Adoption of this issue had no material
impact on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, or liquidity.

In December 2003, the SEC issued SAB 104, which supercedes SAB No. 101, “Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements” (“SAB 1017). The primary purpose of SAB 104 is to rescind
accounting guidance contained in SAB 101 related to multiple element revenue arrangements,
superceded as a result of the issuance of Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 00-21.
Additionally, SAB 104 rescinds the SEC’s “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements Frequently
Asked Questions and Answers” (“the FAQ™) issued with SAB 101 that had been codified in SEC
Topic 13, “Revenue Recognition”. Selected portions of the FAQ have been incorporated into SAB
104. The adoption of SAB 104 did not have an impact on the Company’s financial condition or
results of operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions about the future that affect the
amounts reported in the financial statements and disclosures made in the accompanying notes to the
financial statements. The actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Daou Systems, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements—(Continued)

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies—(Continued)

Reclassifications

Effective January 1, 2003, certain expenses that were formerly recorded as cost of revenue
before reimbursable expenses are now recorded as general and administrative expenses, which the
Company believes is a nore accurate reflection of their nature. The prior period amounts have been
reclassified to conform to their current period presentation.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described more fully in
Note 8. The Company applies the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25,
“Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations in accounting for those
plans. Pro forma information regarding net income and earnings per share is required by SFAS
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and has been determined as if the Company
had accounted for its stock plans under the fair value method of SFAS No. 123, For purposes of the
pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over the
options’ vesting periods. The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per
share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123:

(In thousands, except per share information)

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Net income (loss) available to common stockholders as
TEPOTtEd . . oo e $1,298 $(3,993) $(3,806)
Add total stock-based employee compensation determined
under APB:NO. 25 .. ... 10 — —
Deduct total stock-based employee compensation determined
under the fair value method for all awards, netof tax ..... (953) (3,425) (5,788)
Pro forma net income (10S8) ... ..ot $ 355 $(7,418) $(9,594)
Earnings (loss) per share
Basic—asreported ....... .. ... i i $ 006 $ (021) $ (0.22)
Diluted—asreported ............ ... .. ... $ 005 $ (0.21) $ (0.22)
Basic—proforma ............. .. ... .. L $ 002 $ (039 $ (0.54)
Diluted—proforma ........... . ... . ... $ 001 $ (039 $ (0.54)
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Daou Systems, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements—(Continued)

2. Earnings Per Share

The following table details the computation of basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:

(In thousands, except per share information)

Years Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Numerator:
Netincome (J0SS) .. ... iinii i $ 2,588 $(2,939) $(2,952)
Preferred stock dividends .............. .. ... ... 1,290 1,054 854
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings(loss) per
share—income (loss) available to common
stockholders ........... .. ... 1,298 (3,993) (3,806)
Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding .. . ... 21,662 21,591 19,233
Weighted-average unvested common shares subject to
repurchase agreements ....................... (841) (2,516) (1,551)
Denominator for basic earnings (loss) per share ... ... .... 20,821 19,075 17,682
Effect of dilutive securities:
Unvested common shares subject to repurchase
AGIEEMENES .« .ttt vttt 841 — —
Stockoptions . ... i 1,368 — —
Warrants ... ... 3,483 —_ —
Dilutive potential common shares .................... 5,692 — —
Denominator for diluted earnings (loss) per share ........ 26,513 19,075 17,682
Basic earnings (loss) pershare ................... $ 006 $ (021 $ (0.22)
Diluted earnings (loss) pershare . ................. $ 005 $ (©21) § (0.22)

Options to purchase an additional 1,478,526 shares of common stock were outstanding during
the year ended December 31, 2003, but were not included in the computation of diluted earnings per
share because the options’ exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common
shares and, therefore, the effect would be anti-dilutive. In addition, the Series A Convertible
Preferred Stock and accrued dividends were excluded from diluted earnings per share for the year
ended December 31, 2003 as the assumed conversion would be anti-dilutive.

For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, diluted loss per share is unchanged from
basic loss per share because the effects of the unvested common shares subject to repurchase
agreements and the assumed conversions of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, stock options and
warrants would be anti-dilutive.

3. Restructuring Charges

The Company recorded restructuring charges for years prior to 2003 in accordance with SEC
SAB No. 100, Restructuring And Impairment Charges, and EITF No. 94-3, Liability Recognition For
Certain Employee Termination Benefits And Other Costs To Exit An Activity (Including Certain
Cost Incurred In A Restructuring). Effective January 1, 2003, the Company follows the provisions of
SFAS 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities.”

As of December 31, 2002, as part of its strategy to position itself for continued growth in the
marketplace, the Company reorganized its management structure, consolidated operations and

39




Daou Systems, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements—(Continued)

3. Restructuring Charges—(Continued)

eliminated certain non-strategic services. In addition, in the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company
increased its estimate of costs and related sublease income related to previously announced closures
of certain facilities. These combined actions resulted in a workforce reduction of approximately 16
employees and a restructuring charge in the fourth quarter of 2002 of $1.6 million, During the year
ended December 31, 2001, the Company recorded restructuring charges totaling $1.3 miliion in
connection with its decision to close and combine certain facilities. These charges included severance
costs related to a reduction in workforce of approximately 28 employees and the costs estimated to be
incurred in connection with the closure of certain facilities. During the year ended December 31,
2000, the Company recorded restructuring charges totaling approximately $2.1 million in connection
with the various actions to reduce the cost structure of the Company. These charges included
severance costs related to a reduction in workforce of approximately 50 employees and the closure of
certain facilities.

The following table summarizes the restructuring and other related charges recorded, and the
related activity to such charges, in the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 (in
thousands).

Severance costs for  Costs related to

involuntary closure and
employee combination of
terminations facilities Total
Balance at December 31,2000 . . . .. $ 393 $ 913 $ 1,306
Year Ended December 31, 2001:
Reserve established ......... 310 053 1,263
Reserve utilized ............ (552) (705) (1,257)
Balance at December 31, 2001 ... .. 151 1,161 1,312
Year Ended December 31, 2002:
Reserve established ......... 1,065 533 1,598
Reserve utilized ............ (222) (1,064) (1,286)
Balance: at December 31,2002 .. ... 994 630 1,624
Year Ended December 31, 2003:
Reserve established .........
Reserve utilized ............ {994) (309) (1,303)
Other adjustments(a) ............ (252) (252)
Balance at December 31, 2003 .. ... $ — $ 69 $ 69

(a) In the third quarter of 2003, the Company was able to reduce its obligations relating to unused
office space. The amount has been recorded as a restructuring credit in the statement of
operations as the original provision was recorded as a restructuring expense in the period in
which the charge was recorded.
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4, Investments, Available-For-Sale

Short-term investments, available-for-sale, consist of the following (in thousands):

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
December 31, 2003
Government debt securities ... ............... $L5 ﬁ $_—_— $102
December 31, 2002
Government debt securities .................. §5_9 $_1§ $;i $ 75

ll

The government debt securities mature in 2007 and 2008.

5. Selected Balance Sheet Details

Equipment, furniture and fixtures consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2003 2002
Equipment and furniture ..................... $ 4,826 $4492
Leasehold improvements .. ................... 641 178
5,467 4,670
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .. (4,323) (3,664)

$ 1,144 $ 1,006

Other accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2003 2002

Customer prepayments .. ..........oeuunieenen.. $ 432 § —
Restructure costs ............coiiiiiiin, 69 1,624
Other ... 779 1,141

$1,280 $2,765

6. Commitments

The Company leases its facilities and certain equipment under operating lease agreements. The
facility leases provide for abatement of rent during certain periods, escalating rent payments, and
tenant work allowances during the lease term. Rent expense for 2003, 2002 and 2001 totaled
$678,000, $760,000 and $1,312,000, respectively.

Annual future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases with initial terms
of one year or more at December 31, 2003, consist of the following (in thousands):

2004 . o $1,322
2005 L 362
2006 . e 584
2007 L 599
2008 . 615
Thereafter . ...... .. .. i e e 184

$4,166
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6. Commitments—(Continued)

The Company also subleases certain of its leased facilities under non-cancelable sublease
agreements through 2005. Income related to these subleases is used to primarily offset restructuring
liabilities. For the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, the full amount received from subleases
was applied to rvestructuring liabilities. Future amounts due to the Company under sublease
agreements, aggregating $793,000, are as follows for the year ended December 31; 2004—$559,000
and 2005—5$234,000.

7. Related Party Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company received certain personnel recruitment
services from a:Company owned by one of its Board members at the time. The Company believes the
terms of its arrangement were at least as favorable, if not more, than those offered by competing
recruitment firms. Payments for these services during the year ended December 31, 2002 consisted of
cash compensation totaling $141,000. There were no such services performed in 2003.

8. Stockholders’ Equity
Convertible Preferred Stock

In July 1999, the Company issued 2,181,818 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock to
Galen Partners and their affiliates for an aggregate amount of $12 million or $5.50 per share. Holders
were initially entitled to receive cumulative dividends at the rate of six percent per annum, generally
payable in the form of shares of Series A Preferred Stock until July 26, 2001. The dividend rate
increased to 7% on July 26, 2001, to 8% on July 26, 2002, to 9% on July 26, 2003, and will continue
to increase an additional 1% on July 26 of each year up to a maximum of 12%. No cash dividends
may be paid on the common stock unless full dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock for the then
current dividend period have been either paid or declared with a sum sufficient for the payment set
apart.

The holders of the Series A Convertible Preferred Stock vote on an as converted to common
stock basis with the holders of common stock. The Series A Preferred stockholders also have a
liquidation preference of $5.50 per Series A share, plus any accrued but unpaid dividends. At the
option of the holders, shares of the Series A Preferred Stock can be converted into shares of common
stock at any time, subject to certain antidilution adjustments. The Company is required to make a best
efforts attempt to secure one Board of Director seat for a representative of the holders of Series A
Preferred Stock. The holders of Series A Preferred Stock also obtained certain redemption rights as
part of the original financing transaction in July 1999, They have since permanently waived those
rights as described below.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had accrued but undeclared preferred stock dividends
of approximately $4.3 million (payable in kind by the issuance of approximately 774,000 shares of
Series A Preferred Stock), thereby entitling the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock to a total
liguidation preference of approximately $16.3 million.

On November 9, 2000, as a consequence of the resignation of Larry Grandia, the Company’s
former President and Chief Executive Officer, holders of the Series A Preferred Stock had the right
to cause the redemption of their Series A Preferred Stock for approximately $12.9 million. The
Company entered into an agreement with the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock under which the
holders of the Series A Preferred Stock permanently waived their redemption rights in return for $2.0
million in cash and warrants to purchase 3,540,000 shares of the Company’s common stock
exercisable at $0.01 per share. The warrants expire on November 9, 2005, and the common stock for
which the warrants may be exercised is subject to demand registration rights. The total consideration
for this transaction was valued at approximately $4.1 million and for financial reporting purposes
was recorded as a one-time dividend in the fourth quarter of 2000.
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8. Stockholders’ Equity—(Continued)

Restricted Stock Purchase Agreements and Deferred Compensation

On July 24, 2001, the Company agreed to sell 150,000 shares of restricted common stock at the
July 24, 2001 closing price of $.52 per share 1o an executive officer of the Company, in exchange for
a full recourse note receivable that accrues interest at a rate of 6.75% and is due on July 24, 2006.

On June 1, 2001, the Company agreed to sell an aggregate of 4,150,000 shares of restricted
common stock at the June 1, 2001 closing price of $.29 per share to three executive officers of the
Company, in exchange for full recourse notes receivable that accrue interest at a rate of 6.75% and
which are due on May 31, 2006. As part of this agreement, 1,710,000 options to purchase common
stock previously granted to these executive officers were canceled.

In connection with two of the agreements, the Company agreed to reimburse the officers for the
interest due in accordance with the terms of the notes receivable. Accordingly, deferred
compensation totaling $321,000 was recorded in connection with these agreements. This amount is
included in other assets and is being amortized ratably over the five year term of the notes.
Amortization totaled $113,000, $108,000 and $60,000 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively.

On July 9, 2003, the Company repurchased 300,000 shares of its restricted common stock in
private transactions with its President and Chief Executive Officer and its former Chief Financial
Officer. The aggregate cost to the Company was $196,000. In connection with the repurchases, the
Company received an aggregate amount of $139,000 for repayment of promissory notes, including
principal and interest, relating to the original purchase in 2001 of the shares from the Company. The
related stock pledge and registration rights agreements between each person and the Company were
terminated,

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In May 2000, the Company adopted the Daou Systems, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan
(“ESPP”), under which 1,500,000 shares of the Company’s common stock are reserved for issuance.
Under the ESPP, eligible employees are allowed to purchase common stock at six-month intervals at
the lower of the fair market value at the beginning of the measurement period or 85% of the fair
market value at the end of the measurement period. On December 31, 2002 and June 30, 2002, the
Company issued 105,571 shares of common stock at $.3485 per share and 54,237 shares of common
stock at $.8415 per share, respectively. At December 31, 2002, 904,148 shares remained available for
future issuance under the ESPP. The Company has placed the ESPP in suspended status since
January 1, 2003.

Stock Option Plans

During 1996, the Company adopted the 1996 Stock Option Plan (the “Plan”), under which
5,000,000, as amended, shares of the Company’s common stock are reserved for issuance upon
exercise of options granted by the Company. The Plan provides for the grant of both incentive and
nonstatutory stock options to officers, directors, employees and consultants of the Company. Options
granted by the Company generally vest over a three to five-year period and are exercisable for a
period of ten years from the date of the grant.

The following summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information includes
1,525,000 non-qualified stock options at an exercise price ranging from $0.29 to $1.00 per share,
225,000 options at an exercise price ranging from $0.41 to $1.03 per share and 100,000 options at an
exercise price of $0.28 per share, granted outside of the plan and approved by the Company’s Board
of Directors in 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively:
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2003 2002 2001
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Outstanding—beginning of
ST | S 4,453 958 $1.50 4,298,199 $1.75 3,542,731 $4.10
Granted ................. 475,750 0.36 778,250 0.92 3,472,000 0.40
Exercised ............... (146,671) 0.18 (21,669) 0.18 — —_—
Forfeited .......... e (355,430) 4.38 (600,822) 2.58 (2,716,532) 3.09
Outstanding—end of year .. 4,427,607 $1.20 4453958  $1.50 4,298,199  $1.75
Exercisable at end of year .. 2,211,486  $1.71 2,144,697  $2.24 633,326  $5.95
Weighted-average fair value
of options granted during
theyear ............... $0.32 $0.82 $0.54

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31,

2003:
Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted-

Average Weighted- Weighted-

Remaining Average Average

Range of Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
M gu_tsm Life Price Exercisable Price
$0.00-$ 0.18 1,090,331 73 $0.18 704,338 $0.18
$0.19-$ 0.33 545,000 7.0 $0.29 301,111 $0.29
$0.34-$% 0.50 385,250 8.6 $0.43 79,165 $0.41
$0.51-% 0.75 928,500 7.6 $0.52 450,001 $0.52
$0.76-% 1.00 415,500 8.0 $0.99 5,168 $0.80
$1.01-% 2.00 535,169 8.2 $1.10 191,526 $1.11
$2.01-$ 3.00 8,700 2.7 $2.19 7,220 $2.19
$3.01-$ 4.00 71,808 53 $3.66 61,808 $3.67
$4.01-$ 5.00 158,780 5.2 $4.53 122,580 $4.50
$5.01-$24.25 288,569 42 $7.91 288,569 $7.91
4,427,607 7.3 $1.20 2,211,486 $1.71

At December 31, 2003, options for 1,851,289 common shares were available for future grant.

The fair value of options granted was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions for 2003: risk-free interest
rate of 3%; dividend yield of 0%; volatility factors of the expected market price of the Company’s
common stock of 82%; and a weighted-average expected life of the options of five years for all years.
For 2002 and 2001, the following weighted-average assumptions were used: risk-free interest rate of
6% for both years; dividend yield of 0% for both years; volatility factors of the expected market price
of the Company’s common stock of 138% for both years; and a weighted-average expected life of the
options of five years for both years.
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Common Stock Reserved

At December 31, 2003, the Company had the following shares reserved for future issuance:

Redeemable convertible preferred stock ................. ... .. 2,750,000
WITANES © oo oot e e et e e e e e s 3,540,000
SOCK OPHONS .« . vttt 6,278,896
Employee stock purchaseplan .............. ... ... ... ...... 904,148

Total ... .. 13,473,044

9. Income Taxes

The income tax provision of $52,000 recorded in 2003 is comprised of current federal
alternative minimum taxes of $36,000 and current state income taxes of $16,000. Deferred income
taxes are provided for temporary differences in recognizing certain income and expenses items for
financial and tax reporting purposes.

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are shown below (in
thousands):

December 31,

2003 2002
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization ................ ... ...... $ 60 § —
60 —_
Deferred tax assets:
Reservesand allowances ... ... . . 696 1,620
Tax credit carryforwards ....... ... ... i 36 —
Netoperating losses . ... ... 9,925 10,020
10,657 11,640
Net deferred tax asset before valuation allowance ............... 10,597 11,640
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets .................... (10,597) (11,640)
Netdeferred tax asset . ... ...ttt e $ — % —_

At December 31, 2003, the Company has federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of
approximately $27.0 million and 38.2 million, respectively. The federal loss carryforwards expire
beginning in 2018 through 2022 and the state loss carryforwards expire from 2004 through 2022,
unless previously utilized. Additionally, the Company has alternative minimum tax credit
carryforwards of approximately $36,000 which may be carried forward indefinitely.

Under section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code, the annual use of the Company’s net operating
loss carryforwards may be limited in the event of a cumulative change in ownership of more that
50%. However, the Company does not believe such a limitation will have a material impact on the
ultimate utilization of these carryforwards.
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The reconciliation of income tax computed at the federal statutory rate to the total provision for
income taxes is as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Tax at federal statutoryrate ............. ... ... .. ..., 35.0% (35.0)% (35.00%
Nondeductible expenses .................. e 0.9 24 0.8
State taxes, net of federal benefit ......................... 5.6 (5.5) 2.4)
Valuation allowance ............ ... .. .ot — 38.1 36.6
Use of net.operating loss carryforwards .................... (39.5) — —

20% 0.0% 0.0%

10. Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors the Daou Systems, Inc. 401(k) Salary Savings Plan (the “401(k) Plan™)
which covers employees who meet certain age and service requirements. Employees may contribute
a portion of their earnings each plan year subject to certain Internal Revenue Service limitations. This
Plan replaces the former Daou Systems, Inc. 401¢k) Salary Savings Plan. The Company also had
various other defined contribution plans related to acquisitions under which employees also
participated. During 2003, the Company terminated all of its former defined contribution plans and as
of December 31, 2003 the Company only maintains the 401(k) Plan. Contributions under the 401 (k)
Plan are made at the sole discretion of the Company and were $370,000, $344,000 and $426,000 for
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

11. Contingencies

On August 24, 1998, August 31, 1998, September 14, 1998 and September 23, 1998, four
separate complaints were filed against the Company and certain of its officers and directors in the
United States District Court for the Southern District of California. On October 15, 2002, the Court
granted the Company’s Motion to Dismiss the class action complaint, with prejudice. The plaintiffs
timely noticed appeal and filed their Appellants’ Brief with the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeal on
April 9, 2003. On July 2, the Company filed its Respondents’ Brief and Cross-Appeal. The Cross-
Appeal challenges the trial court’s failure to assess whether the complaint complied with applicable
pleadings standards. After the Appeal and Cross-Appeal were fully briefed, oral arguments were
heard before a panel in February 2004. The Company is currently awaiting the court’s decision,
which is expected after the second quarter 2004.

As background, a group of shareholders were appointed the lead plaintiff in this federal
litigation, and they filed a second amended consolidated class action complaint on January 21, 2000.
Their second amended complaint realleges that the Company improperly used the “percentage-of-
completion” accounting method for revenue recognition. Claims are pleaded under both the 1933
Securities Act (relating to the Company’s initial public offering) and section 10b of the 1934
Securities Act. The complaint was brought on behalf of a purported class of investors who purchased
the Company’s Common Stock between February 13, 1997 and October 28, 1998, but it does not
allege specific damage amounts. A Motion to Dismiss the second amended consolidated class action
complaint was filed on February 22, 2000. On March 27, 2002, the Court granted the Motion but
extended to plaintiffs the opportunity to file a Third Amended Complaint. The plaintiffs filed their
Third Amended Complaint on May 16, 2002, to which the Company responded with another Motion
to Dismiss. The Motion was filed on June 24, 2002 and chalilenged the legal sufficiency of the
allegations. On October 15, 2002, the Court granted that Motion, this time with prejudice. On
October 7, 1998 and October 15, 1998, two separate complaints were filed in the Superior Court of
San Diego County, California. These state court complaints mirror the allegations set forth in the
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federal complaints. They also assert claims for common law fraud and the violation of certain
California statutes. As with their federal counterparts, they do not allege specific damage amounts.
On April 1, 1999, a Consolidated Amended Class Action was filed on behalf of the same state court
plaintiffs, and this new complaint alleges the same factual basis as is asserted in the federal litigation.
The state litigation pleads claims for fraud and violations of certain California Corporation Code
provisions. By stipulation of the parties and order of the court, this state court litigation was stayed
pending the outcome of the motion to dismiss the federal lawsuits. The Company believes that the
allegations set forth in the federal and state complaints are without merit, and the Company intends to
defend against these lawsuits vigorously. No assurance as to the outcome of this matter can be given,
however, and an unfavorable resolution of this matter could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operations, and financial condition.

On February 27, 2002, a Complaint was filed against certain of the Company’s former officers
and directors as well as DAOU On-Line, Inc. in the Superior Court of New Jersey located in Bergen
County. A First Amended Complaint was filed on March 1, 2002, adding the Company and its
former Chief Financial Officer as parties-defendant. The gravaman of the First Amended Complaint
is two-fold. First, it alleges that the Company’s financial statements were misleading and
fraudulently induced the plaintiff to merge his company with the Company. Second, the First
Amended Complaint alleges breach of an indemnification and severance agreement obligating the
Company to defend the plaintiff in a lawsuit filed by Traci Melia, a former employee. Neither the
Complaint nor the First Amended Complaint alleges specific damage amounts.

The Company filed a Motion to Dismiss the First Amended Complaint on April 24, 2002. The
Court conducted a hearing on June 7, 2002 and granted the motion. On July 23, 2002, plaintiffs filed
a Notice of Appeal, but later abandoned their appeal in favor of refiling their lawsuit in San Diego
County Superior Court. The parties stipulated to a stay of this lawsuit and submission of the matter to
arbitration before the American Arbitration Association. The court approved that stipulation and
stayed all proceedings by order dated July 22, 2003. On October 6, 2003, plaintiffs filed a Statement
of Claim with the American Arbitration Association, the gravaman of which is the same as the
former complaint filed in Bergen County, New Jersey and San Diego County Superior Court. The
Statement of Claim alleges compensatory damages in the amount of $1,094,600 and also prays for
punitive damages as well as attorneys’ fees and costs. On December 3, 2003, the Company filed an
answer to the Statement of Claim, generally denying the allegations and alleging certain affirmative
defenses. All parties agreed to the appointment of Peter Shenas as the arbitrator. A preliminary
hearing was conducted on February 3, 2004, during which the parties agreed to the scope of written
and oral discovery and how the arbitration would proceed. Arbitration in this matter is currently set
to commence on July 12, 2004. The Company believes that the allegations set forth in the Statement
of Claim and its predecessor complaints are without merit, and the Company intends to defend
against the arbitration vigorously. No assurance as to the outcome of this matter can be given,
however, and an unfavorable resolution of this matter could have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operations and financial condition.

The Company is party to other various claims and legal actions arising in the normal course of
business. Although the ultimate outcome of the matters is not presently determinable, management
believes that the resolution of all such pending matters, net of amounts accrued, will not have a
material adverse affect on the Company’s business, results of operations or financial condition;
however, there can be no assurance that the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a
material impact on the Company’s results of operations in any period.
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12. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The unaudited financial information reflects all normal
recurring adjustments, which in the opinion of management are necessary for the fair statement of the
results of the interim periods (in thousands, except per share amounts).

Quarter Ended
March 31, June30, September 30, December 31,
2003
NEtTevenue .. ... oo $11,217 $11,202 $10,127 $ 9,615
Grossprofit ........... ... .. .. .. ... .. 3,522 4,113 3,113 2,653
Net income available to common
stockholders ........................ 376 556 331 35
Net income available to common
stockholders per common share:
Basic ......... ... ... ... ..., - 0.02 0.03 0.02 —
Diluted .......................... 0.02 0.02 0.01 —
2002
NELTEVENUE . ..o ettt e ee e $ 90104 $ 9734 $ 90,493 $ 9,604
Grossprofit ......... ... .. L 2,926 2,735 2,748 3,398
Net loss available to common stockholders . . (709) (858) (871) (1,555)
Net income available to common
stockholders per common share:
Basic ........ ... (0.04) (0.05) (0.05) (0.08)
Diluted ................. .. .. ..... (0.04) (0.05) (0.03) (0.08)
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SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
(In thousands)

COL. A COL.B COL.C COL.D COL.E
Additions
Balance at  Charged to Balance at
Beginning of  Costs and Charged to Other End of
Description Period Expenses  Accounts—Describe  Write-offs Period

Year Ended December 31, 2003:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts .. ............ $ 732 $ 57 $ — $ $789
Year Ended December 31, 2002:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts .. ............ $ 715 $186 $ — $169 $732
Year Ended December 31, 2001:
Allowance for doubtful
ACCOUNLS . ... o 'o'ovvvnt,. $1,138 $232 $(381HI(A) $274 $715

{A) Amounts reclassified to Contract Work In Progress.
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Item 9: Changes in and Disagreements With Accountants on Accounting and Financial
Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A: Controls and Procedures.

The Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of the
Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Officer) and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer), of the effectiveness of the design
and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures pursuant to Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(a) and 15d-15(e). Based on that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were
effective, as of December 31, 2003, in alerting them in a timely manner to material information
relating to the Company required to be included in the Company’s periodic SEC filings. There were
no significant changes in the Company’s disclosure controls or internal controls over financial
reporting during the fourth quarter of 2003.

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure information required to be disclosed
in reports filed with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Exchange Act) is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure
controls are also designed with the objective of ensuring that such information is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Disclosure
controls include internal controls that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that transactions
are safeguarded against unauthorized or improper use and that transactions are properly recorded and
reported.

Any control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable,
not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. The design of the control
system inherently has limitations, and the benefits of controls must be weighed against their costs.
Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of
two or more people, or by management override of the control. Therefore, no evaluation of a cost-
effective system of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of
fraud, if any, will be detected.
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PART Il
Item 10:  Directors, Executive Officers, Promoters and Control Persons; Compliance with
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act.

The information required by this item will be included under the captions entitled “Elections of
Directors” and “Information Concerning Directors and Executive Officers” in the Company's Proxy
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11: Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item will be included under the caption entitled “Executive
Compensation” in the Company’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12: Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.

The information required by this item will be included under the caption entitled “Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Company’s Proxy Statement and
is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13:  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information required by this item will be included under the caption entitled “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions” in the Company’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 14:  Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by this item will be included under the caption entitled “Principal
Accountant Fees and Services” in the Company’s Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART IV

Item 15: Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K.
(a) The following are filed as part of, or included in, this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

(1) The financial statements listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and
Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule, filed as a part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

(2) The financial statement schedule listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial
Statements and Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule, filed as a part of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

(3) The exhibits listed in the Index to Exhibits hereof are attached hereto or incorporated
herein by reference and filed as part of this Report.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K:

(1) On November 4, 2003, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K announcing our
intention to discontinue providing support center management services to hospitals and IDNs.

(2) On November 12, 2003, we furnished a Current Report on Form 8-K announcing our
financial results for the quarter ended September 30, 2003.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of thé Securities Exchange Act of
1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 30, 2004
Daou SysTeEMS, INC.

By: /s/  DANIEL J. MALCOLM
Daniel J. Malcolm
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer)

By: /s/ _JOHN A. ROBERTS
John A. Roberts

Chief Financial Officer and Secretary
(Principal Financial Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on
the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/  DANIEL J. MALCOLM Director, President and Chief March 30, 2004
Daniel J. Malcolm Executive Officer
/s/ LarrRY R. FERGUSON Chairman of the Board March 30, 2004
Larry R. Ferguson :
/s/ DAvVID W. JAHNS Director March 30, 2004
David W, Jahns
/s/  VINCENT K. ROACH Director and Executive Vice March 30, 2004
Vincent K. Roach President, Commercial
Operations
Director March 30, 2004

James T. Roberto

53



EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit
Number Description
3.1(1) —Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant.
3.2(1D) —Bylaws of the Registrant.
4.1 —Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 and 3.2.
4.2(1) —Specimen stock certificate.
4.3(3) —Certificate of Designations of the Registrant, as filed with the Secretary of State of the
State of Delaware on July 23, 1999.
4.4(4) —Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of November 9, 2000,
by .and between the Registrant, Galen Partners III, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership
(“Galen III""), Galen Partners International I1I, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership
{“Galen International”), and Galen Employee Fund III, L.P., a Delaware limited
partnership (“Galen Employee Fund”).
4.5(6) —Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the
Registrant and Vincent K. Roach.
4.6(6) —Registration Rights Agreement, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the Registrant and
Vincent K. Roach.
4.7(6) —Stock Purchase Agreement, dated April 25, 2001, by and between the Registrant and
Georges J. Daou.
4.8(7) —Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the
Registrant and Neil R. Cassidy.
4.9(7) —Registration Rights Agreement, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the Registrant and
Neil R. Cassidy.
4.10(7) —Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the
Registrant and James T. Roberto.
4.11(7) —Registration Rights Agreement, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the Registrant and
James T. Roberto.
4.12(2) —Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement, dated November 6, 2001, by and between the
Registrant and Daniel J. Malcolm.
4.13(2) —Registration Rights Agreement, dated November 6, 2001, by and between the
Registrant and Daniel J. Malcolm.
10.1(1) —Form of Indemnification Agreement.
10.2(2) —Amendment No. 5 to Daou Systems, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan, as amended.
10.3(1) —Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 1996 Stock Option Plan.
10.4(1) —Form of Nonstatutory Stock Option Agreement under the 1996 Stock Option Plan.
10.8(3) —Voting Agreement, dated as of July 26, 1999, by and among the Registrant, Daniel I.
Daou, Georges J. Daou, Galen III, Galen International and Galen Employee Fund.
10.9(3) —Series A Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of July 26, 1999, by and
among the Registrant, Galen ITI, Galen International and Galen Employee Fund.
10.10(5) —Employment Agreement, dated October 2, 2000, by and between the Registrant and
Neil R. Cassidy.
10.11(6) —Employment Agreement, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the Registrant and
Vincent K. Roach.
10.12(6)  —Secured Promissory Note, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the Registrant and
Vincent K. Roach.
10.13(6) —Stock Pledge Agreement, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the Registrant and

Vincent K. Roach.
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10.14(7) —Amendment No. 1 to Employment Agreement, dated June 1, 2001, by and between
the Registrant and Neil R. Cassidy.

10.15(7)  —Secured Promissory Note, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the Registrant and
Neil R. Cassidy.

10.16(1) —Stock Pledge Agreement, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the Registrant and
Neil R. Cassidy.

10.17(7) —Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the
Registrant and James T. Roberto.

10.18(7)  —Secured Promissory Note, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the Registrant and
James T. Roberto. ;

10.19(7)  —Stock Pledge Agreement, dated June 1, 2001, by and between the Registrant and
James T. Roberto.

10.20(8)  —Employment Agreement, dated November 6, 2001, by and between the Registrant
and Daniel J. Malcolm.

10.21(2)  —Secured Promissory Note, dated November 6, 2001, by and between the Registrant
and Daniel J. Malcolm.

10.22(2)  —Stock Pledge Agreement, dated November 6, 2001, by and between the Registrant
and Daniel J. Malcolm.

10.23(2) —Executive Stock Option Agreement, dated December 13, 2001, between the
Registrant and Neil R. Cassidy.

10.24(2) —Executive Stock Option Agreement, dated December 13, 2001, between the -
Registrant and James T. Roberto.

10.25(2) —Executive Stock Option Agreement, dated November 6, 2001, between the
Registrant and Daniel J. Malcolm.

10.26(8)  —Executive Stock Option Agreement, dated May 17, 2002, by and between Registrant
and Neil R. Cassidy.

10.27(8)  —Amendment No. 2 to Employment Agreement, dated July 1, 2002, by and between
the Registrant and Neil R. Cassidy.

10.28(8) —Form of Board of Director Stock Option Agreement, dated November 5, 2002, by
and between Registrant and Kevin. M. Fickenscher, David W. Jahns, and
H. Lawrence Ross (25,000 options each), and November 6, 2002, by and between
Registrant and Larry R. Ferguson (100,000 options).

10.29(8) —Separation Agreement and General Release, dated December 31, 2002, between the
Registrant and Neil R. Cassidy.

10.30(8)  —Separation Agreement and General Release, dated December 31, 2002, between the
Registrant and James T. Roberto.

10.31(8) —7Form of Indemnification Agreement.

10.32(9)  —Executive Stock Option Agreement, dated February 10, 2003, between Registrant
and Daniel J. Malcolm.

10.33(9)  —Amendment No. 1 to Separation Agreement and General Release, dated effective
March 31, 2003, between Registrant and Neil R. Cassidy.

23.1(*%) —Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, independent auditors.

31.1(%) —Certification of Daniel J. Malcolm

31.2(%) ~—Certification of John A. Roberts

32.1(%) Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2(%) Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted

pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
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Filed herewith.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form SB-2, File No. 333-18155, declared effective by the
Commission on February 12, 1997,

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, filed with the Commission
on April 1, 2002.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed with the Commission on July 29, 1999.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2000, filed with the
Commission on November 14, 2000.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2001, filed with the
Commission on May 14, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001, filed with the Commission
on August 14, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001, filed with the
Commission on November 14, 2001.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002, filed with the Commission
on March 31, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003, filed with the Commission
on August 14, 2003.
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Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (No.’s 333-
52704, 333-52716, 333-59795 and 333-29745) and Form S-3 (No.’s 333-87103, 333-68197, 333-
52971, and 333-47777) of Daou Systems, Inc. of our report dated February 6, 2004, with respect to
the financial statements and schedule of Daou Systems, Inc. included in the Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 29, 2004




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION

I, Daniel J. Malcolm, certify that:

1

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Daou Systems, Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)), for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is
being prepared; and

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2004

/s/  DANIEL J. MALCOLM
Daniel J. Malcolm
Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
1, John A. Roberts, certify that:
1. Thave reviewed this annunal report on Form 10-K of Daou Systems, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this annual report does not contain any untrue statement of a material
fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)), for the registrant and we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is
being prepared; and

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control
over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles;

¢} evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;
and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit
committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 30, 2004

/s/ JOHN A. ROBERTS
John A. Roberts
Principal Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Daou Systems, Inc, (the “Company”} on Form 10-K
for the period ending December 31, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Daniel J. Malcolm, Chief Executive Officer and President of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ DANIEL J. MALCOLM

Daniel J. Malcolm
Chief Executive Officer and President

March 30, 2004




Exhibit 32.2

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350
As Adopted Pursuant te
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Daou Systems, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K
for the period ending December 31, 2003 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
the date hereof (the “Report™), I, John A. Roberts, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the
financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/  JOHN A. ROBERTS
John A. Roberts
Chief Financial Officer and Secretary

March 30, 2004
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